
 
 

Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

June 4, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

 
 
 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda 

 
B.  Council Reports 
 
C.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1.  Vouchers numbered 110755 through 110800 and EFT payment numbers 359 through 381 in the  
     total amount of $140,321.62 
2.  Vouchers numbered 110814 through 110837 and EFT payment numbers 382 through 395 in the  
     total amount of $753,328.12 
3.  Payroll warrants numbered 12534 through 12630. Warrants 110801 through 110813 in the amount of     
     $384,609.71             
4.  Minutes: 

• Business Meeting of April 16, 2024 
• Study Session of April 23, 2024 

 
D.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 
      The Council invites members of the public to provide comment on any City-related topic. To make comments in person, please 
        sign in on the public comment sheet and keep an instruction card. If you would like to comment on a Business or Action item, please 
        list the agenda item number on the list. To comment virtually using Zoom, please use the “Raise Hand” feature to alert the City Clerk. 
        If you have joined Zoom on your telephone, dial *9 to use the “Raise Hand” feature. City Councilmembers and City Staff will not enter 
        into a dialogue during public comment. If the Council feels an issue requires follow up, Staff will be directed to respond at an    
        appropriate time. 
 
E.  Presentations 
     1.  Proclamation – Pride Month 
 
F.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
     1.  Resolution No. 1335-0524 MBR Headworks Upgrade/Expansion Grant Acceptance – Presented by  
          Capital Projects Manager Aaron Nix   
           
G.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken) 
     1.  Resolution No. 1329-0424 6-Year Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) – Presented by Public  
          Works Director Jay Harris 
     2.  Resolution No. 1332-0524 Work Order with SCJ Alliance for Transportation Comprehensive Plan  
          Update – Presented by Public Works Director Jay Harris 
     3.  Resolution No. 1333-0524 Contract with CivilAir Engineers for Senior Engineering Services – Presented by  
          Public Works Director Jay Harris 
     4.  Council Board and Committee Assignments – Presented by City Manager Mark Ziegler   
 
 



  
  
H.  Administration Reports 
      1.  City Manager Report 
 
I.  New Items for Discussion 
 
J.  Announcement of Next Meeting – June 18, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
K.  Adjourn 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Note for Virtual Public Participation 
 

The meeting can be viewed at: https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofshelton 

The public can provide comments virtually by: 
Email:  donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov (before 5:00pm the day of the meeting)  

Telephone: (360) 432-5103 (before 5:00pm the day of the meeting) 
Join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the link posted on the City Council’s webpage 

 
Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 

https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofshelton
mailto:donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov


 

Updated 5/28/2024 
 

  
2024 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 6/11 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• Shopping Cart Regulations 

Packet Items Due: 
6/7 @ noon 

Tues. 6/18 
5:45 p.m. 

SMPD Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
6/7 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 6/18 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• Shelton-Mason County Chamber Q1 LTAC 

Report 
• April Financial Status Report 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
• Resolution No. 1335-0524 MBR Headworks 

Upgrade/Expansion Grant Acceptance 
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
6/7 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 6/25 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• FLOCK Demonstration 

Packet Items Due: 
6/21 @ noon 

Tues. 7/2 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
6/21 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 7/9 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• Troy Nichols – Annual Report 

Packet Items Due: 
7/5 @ noon 

Tues. 7/16 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• May Financial Status Report 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 

Packet Items Due: 
7/5 @ 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 5/28/2024 
 

•  
Tues. 7/23 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
7/19 @ noon 

Tues. 8/6 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
7/26 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 8/13 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
8/9 @ noon 

Tues. 8/20 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting  
Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
Presentations 

• June Financial Status Report 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
8/9 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Other – TBD 

• Project and Funding Authorization for Wallace Kneeland/Shelton Springs Intersection Improvements 
• Height Limit Ordinance 
• Resolution No. 1305-1123 AMI Project Award 
• Resolution No. 1316-0124 ILA with Mason County for Reimbursable Work, Supplies and Services 
• International Property Maintenance Code  

























































 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

April 16, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL  
Councilmembers: Personnel: 
Mayor Eric Onisko Acting City Manager Jay Harris  
George Blush City Clerk Donna Nault  
Tom Gilmore Finance Director Mike Githens 
Miguel Gutierrez   
Sharon Schirman 
Melissa Stearns     
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Onisko  
Roll Call: City Clerk Nault – All Present 
 
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
None 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Vouchers numbered 110364 through 110419 and EFT payment numbers 246 through 265 in the      

total amount of $164,566.69 
2. Vouchers numbered 110454 through 110493 and EFT payment numbers 266 through 279 in the 

total amount of $769,800.42 
3. Payroll warrants numbered 3977 through 3980 and 12248 through 12285 and 12286 through 12387. 

Warrants 110435 through 110453 in the amount of $883,989.20 
4. Minutes: 

• Business Meeting of February 20, 2024 
• Study Session of February 27, 2024 

 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Blush to approve the 
consent agenda as published. Passed. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
1. February Financial Status Report – Presented by Finance Director Mike Githens 
 
Finance Director Githens presented an overview of the financial reports through the month of February. Discussion 
followed. 
    
 
 
 
 
 



 

City Council – April 16, 2024 - Meeting Minutes 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform  Page 2 of 2 

BUSINESS AGENDA 
1. Resolution No. 1317-0224 Police Vehicle Purchase – Presented by Finance Director Mike Githens 
 
Finance Director Githens presented information regarding the purchase of a police vehicle. Discussion followed. 
No public comment. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Schirman to forward 
Resolution No. 1317-0224 to the action agenda of the May 7, 2024 council meeting. 
 
ACTION AGENDA 
1. Resolution No. 1326-0324 Well #4 Pump Replacement Project Acceptance – Presented by Public Works 

Director Jay Harris 
 
Public Works Director Harris presented information regarding a pump replacement at Well #4. No discussion. 
No public comment. City Clerk Nault provided a reading of Resolution No. 1326-0324. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Blush to adopt Resolution 
No. 1326-0324 as presented. Passed. 
 
ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
1. City Manager Report: 

• Emergency Management Plan 
• AMI project continues to move forward 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT (3-minute time limit) 
In-Person: Zoom: 
Dean Jewett Colleen Carmichael 
Tamra Ingwaldson 
Kathy McDowell 
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
Post Office Park 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
Study Session – April 23, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.  
City Council Meeting – May 7, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
MEETING ADJOURN 
Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 6:39 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko  City Clerk Donna Nault 



 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
Study Session Minutes 

April 23, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

 

City Council - Study Session 
April 23, 2024 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform Page 1 of 1 
 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL  
Councilmembers: Personnel:  
Mayor Eric Onisko City Manager Mark Ziegler   
George Blush City Clerk Donna Nault  
Tom Gilmore Judge Stephen Greer 
Miguel Gutierrez Court Administrator Dyan Smolinsky 
Sharon Schirman 
Melissa Stearns 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
Roll Call: City Clerk Nault – All present 
 
STUDY AGENDA 
1. Municipal Court Update – Presented by Judge Stephen Greer & Court Administrator Dyan Smolinsky 
 
Judge Greer & Court Administrator Smolinsky presented an update regarding the Municipal Court. 
Discussion followed. 
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
None 
 
ADJOURN 
Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 7:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko     City Clerk Donna Nault 



 

City of Shelton 
June 2024 Pride Month 

 

WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council recognizes and proclaims the month of June 2024 as "Lesbian, Gay, 
Bisexual, Transgender, Queer+ (LGBTQ+) Pride Month"; and    

WHEREAS, Washington State has a long-standing tradition of upholding the dignity of the individual, 
supporting legal equality and fair treatment for all people regardless of sexual orientation or gender 
identity, and ensuring that acts of discrimination will not be tolerated; and  

WHEREAS, members of the LGBTQ+ communities contribute to our city’s success in immeasurable ways; 
and 

 WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council observes June as a time to celebrate our dynamic LGBTQ+ 
community, and foster a dialogue to promote healthy, safe, and prosperous school climates and 
communities for all; and  

WHEREAS, the LGBTQ+ community continues to be a target of violence, harassment, and discrimination 
by many and yet continues to thrive with support of LGBTQ+ affirming spaces, agencies, and allies; and  

WHEREAS, because of the acts of courage of the millions who came out and spoke out to demand 
justice, and of those who quietly toiled and pushed for progress, our country has made great strides in 
recognizing what these brave individuals long knew to be true in their hearts - that no person should be 
judged by anything but the content of their character.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Shelton City Council recognizes June 2024 as “Lesbian, 
Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer+ (LGBTQ+) Pride Month” in the City of Shelton.  All people are 
encouraged to join in celebrating diversity and promoting inclusion and equal protection under the law, 
and to join together to eliminate discriminatory policies toward any culture, race, or group.   

 

SIGNED this 4th day of June 2024, in Shelton, Washington. 

 

         
       ___________________________________________ 
        Eric Onisko, Mayor 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F1) 

Touch Date:  05/14/2024  
Brief Date:    06/04/2024        
Action Date:  06/18/2024  

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Aaron C. Nix, Capital Projects Manager 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 1. 
MBR Headworks 
Upgrades/Expansion Grant  
Acceptance 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution No. 1335-0524 
2. State 2022 Headworks Grant 

Award Agreement  
   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The headworks upgrade grant was awarded to the City by a direct appropriation from the Washington State 
Legislature in 2022 in order to design and construct improvements to expand the headworks at the City’s reclaimed 
water treatment plant located adjacent to Highway 101 on the south side of Sanderson Field. The expansion of the 
headworks (plant intake screening and distribution) at the satellite treatment plant is one of the upgrades needed in 
the treatment process that will eventually increase the overall capacity at the plant. Other future needed capacity 
upgrades include changing the filtration cartridges to increase flowrates, disinfection system upgrades, larger solids 
handling, out of spec water holding pond, and conversion of the current reclaimed water spray field to an underground 
injection/infiltration facility. 
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
Staff are working with a consultant to design a project to construct the larger reclaimed water storage reservoir 
(500,000 gallons) at the reclaimed water treatment plant as another part of the capacity expansion. This work is slated 
for construction in the Summer/Fall of 2024. Not implementing the headworks upgrades/expansion will postpone 
capacity upgrades at the treatment facility that may prevent future users from connecting to the facility, as described 
within the City’s adopted 2023 Comprehensive Wastewater Treatment Plan approved by the Department of Ecology. 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
All monies dedicated towards this work will come from the direct appropriation by the Washington State  
legislature, under the grant agreement. If additional funds are necessary in order to construct this project, staff 
will bring the project back to the Council for further consideration. No additional funding resources are needed at this 
time.    
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Documents as it pertains to this project have been included within the Council packet materials. All materials are 
available and can be obtained from the Public Works Department.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to place Resolution No. 1335-0524 on to the Action Agenda for the June 18, 2024 Council meeting for 
further consideration.”   



   

RESOLUTION NO. 1335-0524 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO APPROVE AND SIGN THE GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHINGTON STATE 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE FOR GRANTS FUNDS TO EXPAND AND IMPROVE THE HEADWORKS AT 
THE CITY RECLAIMED WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

 
WHEREAS, the City applied for and received a legislative direct appropriation in the amount of 

$3,200,000 for upgrading and enhancing the City’s reclaimed water treatment plant located near 
Sanderson Field; and 

WHEREAS, these monies will be utilized in order to prepare design, construction documents and 
physically construct the headworks improvements as outlined within the City’s adopted and approved 
Comprehensive Wastewater Plan (2023); and  

WHEREAS, these improvements will allow the City to process additional reclaimed wastewater once 
this project and other treatment process improvements are completed; and 

WHEREAS, City Staff have fulfilled all of the preliminary requirements in order to allow the Department 
of Commerce to proceed with issuing a grant agreement for this project; and 

WHEREAS, City Staff intend to proceed with design once the grant agreement is signed, and plan that 
the construction of the upgrades are underway in the Summer of 2025. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager is 
authorized to sign the grant agreement (Appendix A) with the Department of Commerce for design and 
construction of improvements to the City’s reclaimed water treatment plant. 
 
INTRODUCED on the 4th day of June 2024 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting held on 
this 18th day of June 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault 
 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
1011 Plum Street SE  PO Box 42525  Olympia, Washington 98504-2525  360-725-4000 

www.commerce.wa.gov 

 

 

May 16, 2022 
 
  
 
Jay Harris 
City of Shelton 
525 West Cota Street  
Shelton, WA  98584 
 
 
Dear Jay: 
Congratulations! Governor Inslee recently signed the 2022 Supplemental State Capital Budget, which includes an 
appropriation of $3,250,000.00 for the Shelton Water Reclamation Facility project. The Department of Commerce, 
which will administer the project, will retain three percent (up to a maximum of $50,000) to cover our 
administrative costs. Accordingly, your net grant award will be $3,200,000.00. 
 
Prior to receiving funds, your organization will need to fulfill the following requirements: 

 Provide documentation of your organization’s financial ability to complete the project. All funds from 
sources other than the state must be expended, raised, or secured by documented pledges or loans. 

 For nonprofit grantees, any property relevant to the project must be owned or secured by a long-term 
lease that remains in effect for a minimum of ten years following the final payment date. A lien on owned 
property is also required when receiving grants of $250,000 or more. 

 Prevailing wages must be paid for all construction labor costs incurred as applicable. 

 Review by the Washington State Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation and any affected 
Tribes (Governor’s Executive Order 21-02).  

 Your project may also need to comply with the state’s LEED green buildings standards (RCW 39.35D).  
 

Soon you will receive the Contract Readiness Survey form and 21-02 Cultural Resources Review instructions, these 
are the pre-contract conditions that need to be completed, please complete and submit as soon as possible. The 
contracting process is not initiated until the pre-contracting conditions have been met. 
 
Enclosed is Infrastructure Projects Program Guidelines to assist you with the process. If you need additional 
information, please contact your Project Manager, Lena Moore, at 360.764.0632 or 
lena.moore@commerce.wa.gov or me at 360.704.9435 or by email connie.rivera@commerce.wa.gov.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Connie Rivera, Infrastructure Section Manager 
Community Assistance & Research Unit 
 

mailto:lena.moore@commerce.wa.gov
mailto:connie.rivera@commerce.wa.gov


 
    
 

 
Grant to 

City of Shelton 
 

through 
 

   The Infrastructure Projects Program 
 
 
For 

                Shelton Water Reclamation Facility (Shelton) 
 
 
 
Start date:  July 1, 2021  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

i 

 

 

Table of Contents 
FACE SHEET ................................................................................................................................................ 1 

DECLARATIONS .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

ADDITIONAL RECITALS .............................................................................................................................. 2 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS ......................................................................................................... 3 

1. GRANT MANAGEMENT ................................................................................................................... 3 

2. COMPENSATION ............................................................................................................................. 3 

3. CERTIFICATION OF FUNDS PERFORMANCE MEASURES ......................................................... 3 

4. PREVAILING WAGE LAW ................................................................................................................ 3 

5. DOCUMENTATION AND SECURITY .............................................................................................. 4 

6. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING REAL PROPERTY VALUES FOR ACQUISITIONS OF REAL 
PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURES ................................................................................... 4 

7. EXPENDITURES ELIGIBLE FOR REIMBURSEMENT .................................................................... 4 

8. BILLING PROCEDURES AND PAYMENT ....................................................................................... 5 

9. SUBCONTRACTOR DATA COLLECTION ....................................................................................... 6 

10. CLOSEOUT CERTIFICATION .......................................................................................................... 6 

11. INSURANCE ..................................................................................................................................... 6 

12. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE ............................................................................................................. 8 

13. REDUCTION IN FUNDS ................................................................................................................... 8 

14. OWNERSHIP OF PROJECT/CAPITAL FACILITIES ........................................................................ 8 

15. CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP OR USE FOR GRANTEE-OWNED PROPERTY ............................... 9 

16. CHANGE OF USE FOR LEASED PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURE ............................... 9 

17. SIGNAGE, MARKERS AND PUBLICATIONS .................................................................................. 9 

18. HISTORICAL AND CULTURAL ARTIFACTS ................................................................................... 9 

19. REAPPROPRIATION ...................................................................................................................... 10 

20. TERMINATION FOR FRAUD OR MISREPRESENTATION .......................................................... 10 

21. APPLICABILITY OF COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS TO ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING DESIGN 
WORK ............................................................................................................................................ 10 

22. FRAUD AND OTHER LOSS REPORTING .................................................................................... 10 

23. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT ................................................................................................................ 11 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS ..................................................................................................... 12 

1. DEFINITIONS.................................................................................................................................. 12 

2. ACCESS TO DATA ......................................................................................................................... 12 

3. ADVANCE PAYMENTS PROHIBITED ........................................................................................... 12 

4. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN .......................................................................................... 12 

5. AMENDMENTS ............................................................................................................................... 12 

6. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) OF 1990, PUBLIC LAW 101-336, ALSO 
REFERRED TO AS THE “ADA” 28 CFR PART 35 ....................................................................... 13 

7. ASSIGNMENT................................................................................................................................. 13 

8. ATTORNEYS’ FEES ....................................................................................................................... 13 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



ii 

9. AUDIT .............................................................................................................................................. 13 

10. BREACHES OF OTHER STATE CONTRACTS ............................................................................. 14 

11. CONFIDENTIALITY/SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION .......................................................... 14 

12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST ............................................................................................................. 14 

13. COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS ........................................................................................................... 15 

14. DISPUTES ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

15. DUPLICATE PAYMENT .................................................................................................................. 16 

16. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE ................................................................................................... 16 

17. INDEMNIFICATION ........................................................................................................................ 16 

18. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE GRANTEE ........................................................................... 16 

19. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE ....................................................................................... 17 

20. LAWS .............................................................................................................................................. 17 

21. LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION................................................................. 17 

22. LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY ........................................................................................................ 17 

23. NONCOMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS ............................................................ 17 

24. PAY EQUITY ................................................................................................................................... 17 

25. POLITICAL ACTIVITIES ................................................................................................................. 18 

26. PUBLICITY ...................................................................................................................................... 18 

27. RECAPTURE .................................................................................................................................. 18 

28. RECORDS MAINTENANCE ........................................................................................................... 18 

29. REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE................................................................. 18 

30. RIGHT OF INSPECTION ................................................................................................................ 18 

31. SAVINGS ........................................................................................................................................ 19 

32. SEVERABILITY ............................................................................................................................... 19 

33. SITE SECURITY ............................................................................................................................. 19 

34. SUBGRANTING/SUBCONTRACTING ........................................................................................... 19 

35. SURVIVAL ....................................................................................................................................... 19 

36. TAXES ............................................................................................................................................. 19 

37. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE ......................................................................................................... 19 

38. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE ........................................................................................... 20 

39. TERMINATION PROCEDURES ..................................................................................................... 20 

40. TREATMENT OF ASSETS ............................................................................................................. 21 

41. WAIVER .......................................................................................................................................... 21 

ATTACHMENT A - SCOPE OF WORK ...................................................................................................... 22 

ATTACHMENT B - CERTIFICATION OF THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS TO COMPLETE THE 
PROJECT.................................................................................................................................................... 23 

ATTACHMENT C - CERTIFICATION OF THE PAYMENT AND REPORTING OF PREVAILING WAGES
 .................................................................................................................................................................... 24 

ATTACHMENT D - CERTIFICATION OF INTENT TO ENTER THE LEADERSHIP IN ENERGY AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN (LEED) CERTIFICATION PROCESS .......................................................... 25 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 
 

1 

 

FACE SHEET 
 

Grant Agreement Number: 22-96515-050 
Project Name: Shelton Water Reclamation Facility (Shelton) 

 
Washington State Department of Commerce 

Local Government Division 
 Community Capital Facilities

1. GRANTEE 2. GRANTEE Doing Business As (optional) 
City of Shelton 
525 W Cota Street 
Shelton, WA 98584  

 

3. GRANTEE Representative 4. COMMERCE Representative 
Aaron Nix, Capital Projects Manager 
525 W Cota Street 
Shelton, WA 98584  
360.490.0453 
Aaron.Nix@sheltonwa.gov  

Lena Moore, Grant Manager 
PO Box 42525, Olympia, WA 98504 
360.764.0632 
lena.moore@commerce.wa.gov  

5. Grant Amount 6. Funding Source 7. Start Date 8. End Date 

$3,200,000.00 Federal:   State: X   Other:   N/A:  July 1, 2021 June 30, 2027,  
contingent on reappropriation; 
June 30, 2025, if funds are not 
reappropriated. 

9. Federal Funds (as applicable) 

N/A 

Federal Agency   
N/A 

CFDA Number  
N/A 

10. Tax ID # 11. SWV # 12. UBI # 13. DUNS # 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXX SWV0013140-00 232000085 021830666 

14. Grant Purpose 
The purpose of this performance-based Grant Agreement is to provide funding for a legislatively approved project that 

furthers the goals and objectives of the Infrastructure Projects Program as described in Attachment A – Scope of Work 

(the “Project”). 
 

COMMERCE, defined as the Washington State Department of Commerce, and the GRANTEE, as defined above, 
acknowledge and accept the terms of this Grant Agreement and attachments and have executed this Grant Agreement on 
the date below to start as of the date and year referenced above.  The rights and obligations of both parties to this Grant 
Agreement are governed by this Grant Agreement and the following other documents incorporated by reference:  Grant 
Agreement Terms and Conditions including Attachment “A” – Scope of Work, Attachment “B” – Certification of Availability 
of Funds to Complete the Project, Attachment “C” – Certification of the Payment and Reporting of Prevailing Wages, 
Attachment “D” – Certification of Intent to Enter LEED Process.  
 

FOR GRANTEE FOR COMMERCE 
 
 
  
Signature 
 
  
Print Name 
 
  
Title 
 
  
Date 

 
 
  
Mark K. Barkley, Assistant Director 
Local Government Division 
 
  
Date 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
Dawn Cortez, Assistant Attorney General 
10/3/2023      
Date 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A

mailto:Aaron.Nix@sheltonwa.gov
mailto:lena.moore@commerce.wa.gov


 

2 

 

DECLARATIONS 
 
GRANTEE INFORMATION 
  
GRANTEE Name: City of Shelton 
Grant Agreement Number: 22-96515-050 
State Wide Vendor Number:  SWV0013140-00 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
  
Project Name: Shelton Water Reclamation Facility (Shelton) 
Project City:  Shelton 
Project State: Washington 
Project Zip Code:  98584-2239 
 
GRANT AGREEMENT INFORMATION 
 
Grant Amount: $3,200,000.00 
Appropriation Number:  
 
Re-appropriation Number (if applicable): 

SSB 5651, SL Section 1033 (2022 Regular Session) 
 
ESSB 5200, SL Section 6066 (2023 Regular 
Session) 

  
Grant Agreement End Date: June 30, 2027, contingent on reappropriation; 

June 30, 2025, if funds are not reappropriated. 
 
Biennium: 

 
2023-2025  

Biennium Close Date: June 30, 2025 
 

PROJECT PURPOSE   
 
To upgrade the headworks at the Reclaimed Water Treatment Plant. 

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS GOVERNING THIS AGREEMENT 
 
Grant Agreement End Date: In the event funds for the project are reappropriated, the contract end date 
will be extended pursuant to the reappropriation and consistent with Special Term and Condition 19. 
Depending on the reappropriation, a contract amendment may be required. 
 

ADDITIONAL RECITALS 

 
N/A  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6  

 
 3 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GENERAL GRANT 

STATE FUNDS 
 

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT, entered into by and between the GRANTEE and COMMERCE, as defined 
on the Face Sheet of this Grant Agreement, WITNESSES THAT: 
 
 WHEREAS, COMMERCE has the statutory authority under RCW 43.330.050(5) to cooperate 

with and provide assistance to local governments, businesses, and community-based 
organizations; and 

 
 WHEREAS, COMMERCE is also given the responsibility to administer state funds and programs 

which are assigned to COMMERCE by the Governor or the Washington State Legislature; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature has made an appropriation to support the 

Infrastructure Projects Program, and directed COMMERCE to administer those funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the enabling legislation also stipulates that the GRANTEE is eligible to receive 

funding for design, acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of covenants, conditions, performances, and promises hereinafter 
contained, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. GRANT MANAGEMENT 
The Representative for each of the parties is identified on the Face Sheet of this Grant Agreement 
and shall be responsible for and shall be the contact person for all communications and billings 
regarding the performance of this Grant Agreement.  

 
2. COMPENSATION 

COMMERCE shall pay an amount not to exceed the awarded Grant Amount as shown on the Face 
Sheet of this Grant Agreement, for the capital costs necessary for or incidental to the performance of 
work as set forth in the Scope of Work.   

 
3. CERTIFICATION OF FUNDS PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

A. The release of state funds under this Grant Agreement is contingent upon the GRANTEE 
certifying that it has expended or has access to funds from non-state sources as set forth in 
ATTACHMENT B (CERTIFICATION OF THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS TO COMPLETE THE 
PROJECT).  Such non-state sources may consist of a combination of any of the following: 
i) Eligible Project expenditures prior to the execution of this Grant Agreement. 
ii) Cash dedicated to the Project. 
iii) Funds available through a letter of credit or other binding loan commitment(s). 
iv) Pledges from foundations or corporations. 
v) Pledges from individual donors. 
vi) The value of real property when acquired solely for the purposes of this Project, as 

established and evidenced by a current market value appraisal performed by a licensed, 
professional real estate appraiser, or a current property tax statement.  COMMERCE will 
not consider appraisals for prospective values of such property for the purposes of 
calculating the amount of non-state matching fund credit. 

vii) In-kind contributions, subject to COMMERCE’S approval.  
B. The GRANTEE shall maintain records sufficient to evidence that it has access to or has 

expended funds from such non-state sources, and shall make such records available for 
COMMERCE’s review upon reasonable request. 

 
4. PREVAILING WAGE LAW 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6  

 
 4 

The Project funded under this Grant Agreement may be subject to state prevailing wage law (RCW 
39.12).  The GRANTEE is advised to consult the Industrial Statistician at the Washington Department 
of Labor and Industries to determine whether prevailing wages must be paid.  COMMERCE is not 
responsible for determining whether prevailing wage applies to this Project or for any prevailing wage 
payments that may be required by law. 

 
5. DOCUMENTATION AND SECURITY 

The provisions of this section shall apply to capital projects performed by nonprofit organizations and 
public benefit corporations that involve the expenditure of over $250,000 in state funds.  Additionally, 
Commerce reserves the right to review all state-funded projects and to require that projects 
performed by other entity types comply with this section.  Projects for which the grant award or 
legislative intent documents specify that the state funding is to be used for pre-design or design only 
are exempt from this section. 
A. Deed of Trust.  This Grant Agreement shall be evidenced by a promissory note and secured by a 

deed of trust or other appropriate security instrument in favor of COMMERCE (the “Deed of 
Trust”).  The Deed of Trust shall be recorded in the County where the Project is located, and the 
original returned to COMMERCE after recordation within ninety (90) days of Grant Agreement 
execution.  The Deed of Trust must be recorded before COMMERCE will reimburse the 
GRANTEE for any Project costs.  The amount secured by the Deed of Trust shall be the amount 
of the Grant Agreement as set forth on the Face Sheet. 

B. Term of Deed of Trust.  The Deed of Trust shall remain in full force and effect for a minimum 
period of ten (10) years following the later of: (1) final payment of state funds to the GRANTEE 
under this grant; or (2) the date when the facility improved or acquired with grant funds, or a 
distinct phase of the project, is made useable to the public for the purpose intended by the 
Legislature.  Upon satisfaction of the ten-year term requirement and all other grant terms and 
conditions, COMMERCE shall, upon written request of the GRANTEE, take appropriate action to 
reconvey the Deed of Trust. 

C. Title Insurance.  The GRANTEE shall purchase an extended coverage lender’s policy of title 
insurance insuring the lien position of the Deed of Trust in an amount not less than the amount of 
the grant. 

D. Covenant. If the project will be partially funded by a loan and the term of said loan is less than the 
commitment period under this Grant Agreement, COMMERCE may require that GRANTEE 
record or cause to be recorded a covenant in a superior lien position ahead of the lender’s 
security instrument that restricts use of the facility or property for the purpose(s) stated elsewhere 
in this contract for at least the term of the commitment period. 

E. Subordination.  COMMERCE may agree to subordinate its deed of trust upon request from a 
private or public lender.  Any such request shall be submitted to COMMERCE in writing, and 
COMMERCE shall respond to the request in writing within thirty (30) days of receiving the 
request.  

 
6. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING REAL PROPERTY VALUES FOR ACQUISITIONS OF REAL 

PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
When all or part of the grant is used to fund the acquisition of real property, before funds are 
disbursed, the GRANTEE shall procure and provide to COMMERCE evidence establishing the 
value of the real property eligible for reimbursement: 
A. GRANTEE purchases of real property from an independent third-party seller shall be 

evidenced by a current appraisal prepared by a licensed Washington State commercial real 
estate appraiser, or a current property tax statement. 

B. GRANTEE purchases of real property from a subsidiary organization, such as an affiliated 
LLC, shall be evidenced by a current appraisal prepared by a licensed Washington State 
commercial real estate appraiser or the prior purchase price of the property plus holding 
costs, whichever is less. 

 
7. EXPENDITURES ELIGIBLE FOR REIMBURSEMENT  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6  

 
 5 

Payments to the Grantee shall be made on a reimbursement basis only.  The GRANTEE may be 
reimbursed for the following eligible costs related to the activities identified in the SCOPE OF WORK 
shown on Attachment A.  

 
A. Real property, and costs directly associated with such purchase, when purchased or acquired 

solely for the purposes of the Project; 
B. Design, engineering, architectural, and planning; 
C. Construction management and observation (from external sources only); 
D. Construction costs including, but not limited to, the following: 
  Site preparation and improvements; 
  Permits and fees; 
  Labor and materials; 
  Taxes on Project goods and services; 
  Capitalized equipment; 
  Information technology infrastructure; and 
  Landscaping. 
F. Other costs authorized through the legislation. 

 
8. BILLING PROCEDURES AND PAYMENT  

COMMERCE shall reimburse the GRANTEE for eligible Project expenditures, up to the maximum 
payable under this Grant Agreement.  When requesting reimbursement for expenditures made, the 
GRANTEE shall submit to COMMERCE a signed and completed Invoice Voucher (Form A-19), that 
documents capitalized Project activity performed for the billing period. The GRANTEE can submit all 
Invoice Vouchers and any required documentation electronically through COMMERCE’s Contracts 
Management System (CMS), which is available through the Secure Access Washington (SAW) 
portal. 
 
The GRANTEE shall evidence the costs claimed on each voucher by including copies of each invoice 
received from vendors providing Project goods or services covered by the Grant Agreement.  The 
GRANTEE shall also provide COMMERCE with a copy of the cancelled check or electronic funds 
transfer, as applicable, that confirms that they have paid each expenditure being claimed.  The 
cancelled checks or electronic funds transfers may be submitted to COMMERCE at the time the 
voucher is initially submitted, or within thirty (30) days. 
 
The voucher must be certified (signed) by an official of the GRANTEE with authority to bind the 
GRANTEE.  The final voucher shall be submitted to COMMERCE within sixty (60) days following the 
completion of work or other termination of this Grant Agreement, or within fifteen (15) days following 
the end of the state biennium unless Grant Agreement funds are reappropriated by the Legislature in 
accordance with Special Terms and Conditions Section 19. 
 
If GRANTEE has or will be submitting any of the invoices attached to a request for payment for partial 
reimbursement under another grant contract, GRANTEE must clearly identify such grant contracts in 
the transmittal letter and request for payment. 
 
Each request for payment must be accompanied by a Project Status Report, which describes, in 
narrative form, the progress made on the Project since the last invoice was submitted, as well as a 
report of Project status to date.  COMMERCE will not release payment for any reimbursement 
request received unless and until the Project Status Report is received.  After approving the Invoice 
Voucher and Project Status Report, COMMERCE shall promptly remit a warrant to the GRANTEE. 
 
COMMERCE will pay GRANTEE upon acceptance of services provided and receipt of properly 
completed invoices, which shall be submitted to the Representative for COMMERCE not more often 
than monthly. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6  

 
 6 

Payment shall be considered timely if made by COMMERCE within thirty (30) calendar days after 
receipt of properly completed invoices.  Payment shall be sent to the address designated by the 
GRANTEE. 
 
COMMERCE may, in its sole discretion, terminate the Grant Agreement or withhold payments 
claimed by the GRANTEE for services rendered if the GRANTEE fails to satisfactorily comply with 
any term or condition of this Grant Agreement.   
 
No payments in advance or in anticipation of services or supplies to be provided under this 
Agreement shall be made by COMMERCE. 

 
Duplication of Billed Costs 
The GRANTEE shall not bill COMMERCE for services performed under this Grant Agreement, and 
COMMERCE shall not pay the GRANTEE, if the GRANTEE is entitled to payment or has been or will 
be paid by any other source, including grants, for that service. 
 

 Disallowed Costs 
The GRANTEE is responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by its own 
organization or that of its subgrantees. 
 

9. SUBCONTRACTOR DATA COLLECTION 
GRANTEE will submit reports, in a form and format to be provided by COMMERCE and at intervals 
as agreed by the parties, regarding work under this Grant Agreement performed by subcontractors 
and the portion of grant funds expended for work performed by subcontractors, including but not 
necessarily limited to minority-owned, woman-owned, and veteran-owned business subcontractors. 
“Subcontractors” shall mean subcontractors of any tier. 
 

10. CLOSEOUT CERTIFICATION 
The GRANTEE shall complete and submit a Closeout Certification Form when: 
 

A. All activities identified in the SCOPE OF WORK shown on Attachment A are complete and 
the project is useable to the public for the purpose intended by the Legislature, or 

B. When final payment is made and Grantee has certified that the whole project will be 
completed and the public benefit described maintained for the term of the commitment 
period.  

C. Notwithstanding anything in A. or B. above, the right to recapture funds or seek other 
remedies for failure to make the project usable to the public shall survive the closeout or 
termination of this contract. 

 
11. INSURANCE 

A. Insurance Requirements for Reimbursable Activities 

The GRANTEE will maintain appropriate insurance coverage throughout any period in which 
reimbursable activities are conducted. The intent of the required insurance is to protect the state of 
Washington should there be any claims, suits, actions, costs, damages or expenses arising from any 
loss, or negligent or intentional act or omission of the GRANTEE, or Subgrantee, or agents of either, 
while performing under the terms of this Grant Agreement. 
 
B. Additional Insurance Requirements During the Term of the Grant Agreement 

The GRANTEE shall provide proof to COMMERCE of the following insurance coverage as applicable: 
 

Commercial General Liability Insurance Policy.  Provide a Commercial General Liability 
Insurance Policy, including contractual liability, written on an occurrence basis, in adequate 
quantity to protect against legal liability related to this Grant Agreement but no less than 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6  

 
 7 

$1,000,000 per occurrence. Additionally, the GRANTEE is responsible for ensuring that any 
Subgrantee/subcontractor provide adequate insurance coverage for the activities arising out of 
subgrants/subcontracts. Commercial General Liability Insurance coverage shall be maintained in 
full force and effect during the term of this Grant Agreement and throughout the commitment 
period described in Special Terms and Conditions Section 5, 15, and 16. 
 

Property Insurance. The GRANTEE shall keep the property insured in an amount sufficient to 
permit such insurance to be written at all times on a replacement cost basis. Such insurance shall 
cover the following hazards, as applicable: 

 Loss or damage by fire and such other risks; 

 Loss or damage from leakage or sprinkler systems now or hereafter installed in any 
building on the premises; 

 Loss or damage by explosion of steam boilers, pressure vessels, oil or gasoline storage 
tanks or similar apparatus now or hereafter installed in a building or building on the 
premises. 

Property Insurance coverage shall be maintained in full force and effect during the term of this 
Grant Agreement and throughout the commitment period described in Special Terms and 
Conditions Section 5, 15, and 16. 
 
Professional Liability, Errors and Omissions Insurance. If GRANTEE will be providing any 
professional services to be reimbursed under this Grant Agreement, the GRANTEE shall maintain 
Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Insurance with minimum limits of no less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence to cover all activities by the GRANTEE and licensed staff employed or 
under contract to the GRANTEE. The state of Washington, its agents, officers, and employees 
need not be named as additional insureds under this policy. 
 
Fidelity Insurance.  Every officer, director, employee, or agent who is authorized to act on behalf 
of the GRANTEE for the purpose of receiving or depositing funds into program accounts or 
issuing financial documents, checks, or other instruments of payment for program costs shall be 
insured to provide protection against loss: 
A. The amount of fidelity coverage secured pursuant to this Grant Agreement shall be 

$2,000,000 or the highest of planned reimbursement for the Grant Agreement period, 
whichever is lowest.  Fidelity insurance secured pursuant to this paragraph shall name 
COMMERCE as beneficiary. 

B. Subgrantees/subcontractors that receive $10,000 or more per year in funding through this 
Grant Agreement shall secure fidelity insurance as noted above.  Fidelity insurance secured 
by Subgrantees/subcontractors pursuant to this paragraph shall name the GRANTEE and the 
GRANTEE’s fiscal agent as beneficiary.  

C. Fidelity Insurance coverage shall be maintained in full force and effect during the term of this 
Grant Agreement. 

 

The insurance required shall be issued by an insurance company authorized to do business within 
the state of Washington. The insurance shall name the state of Washington, its agents, officers, and 
employees as additional insureds under the insurance policy. All policies shall be primary to any other 
valid and collectable insurance. The GRANTEE shall instruct the insurers to give COMMERCE thirty 
(30) calendar days advance notice of any insurance cancellation or modification. 

The GRANTEE shall provide to COMMERCE copies of insurance instruments or certifications from 
the insurance issuing agency.  The copies or certifications shall show the insurance coverage, the 
designated beneficiary, who is covered, the amounts, the period of coverage, and that COMMERCE 
will be provided thirty (30) days advance written notice of cancellation.  

During the term of the Grant Agreement, the GRANTEE shall submit renewal certificates not less 
than thirty (30) calendar days prior to expiration of each policy required under this section.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6  

 
 8 

 
Professional Liability, Errors and Omissions Insurance. The GRANTEE shall require that any 
contractors providing professional services that are reimbursable under this Grant Agreement 
maintain Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Insurance. The GRANTEE shall require such 
contractors to maintain minimum limits of no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. The state of 
Washington, its agents, officers, and employees need not be named as additional insureds under 
these policies. 

 
GRANTEES and Local Governments that Participate in a Self-Insurance Program. 
Self-Insured/Liability Pool or Self-Insured Risk Management Program – With prior approval from 
COMMERCE, the GRANTEE may provide the coverage above under a self-insured/liability pool or 
self-insured risk management program.  In order to obtain permission from COMMERCE, the 
GRANTEE shall provide: (1) a description of its self-insurance program, and (2) a certificate and/or 
letter of coverage that outlines coverage limits and deductibles.  All self-insured risk management 
programs or self-insured/liability pool financial reports must comply with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and adhere to accounting standards promulgated by: 1) Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), 2) Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), and 3) the 
Washington State Auditor’s annual instructions for financial reporting.  GRANTEE’s participating in 
joint risk pools shall maintain sufficient documentation to support the aggregate claim liability 
information reported on the balance sheet.  The state of Washington, its agents, and employees need 
not be named as additional insured under a self-insured property/liability pool, if the pool is prohibited 
from naming third parties as additional insured. 
 
GRANTEE shall provide annually to COMMERCE a summary of coverages and a letter of self 
insurance, evidencing continued coverage under GRANTEE’s self-insured/liability pool or self-insured 
risk management program.  Such annual summary of coverage and letter of self insurance will be 
provided on the anniversary of the start date of this Agreement. 

 
12. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

In the event of an inconsistency in this Grant Agreement, the inconsistency shall be resolved by 
giving precedence in the following order:  

 Applicable federal and state of Washington statutes and regulations 

 Declarations page of this Grant Agreement 

 Special Terms and Conditions  

 General Terms and Conditions 

 Attachment A – Scope of Work 

 Attachment B – Certification of the Availability of Funds to Complete the Project 

 Attachment C – Certification of the Payment and Reporting of Prevailing Wages 

 Attachment D – Certification of Intent to Enter the Leadership in Energy and Environmental 
Design (LEED) Certification Process 

 
13. REDUCTION IN FUNDS 

In the event state funds appropriated for the work contemplated under this Grant Agreement are 
withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way by the Governor or the Washington State Legislature, or 
other funding source, during the Grant Agreement period, Commerce may suspend, amend, or 
terminate the contract. 

 
14. OWNERSHIP OF PROJECT/CAPITAL FACILITIES 

COMMERCE makes no claim to any real property improved or constructed with funds awarded under 
this Grant Agreement and does not assert and will not acquire any ownership interest in or title to the 
capital facilities and/or equipment constructed or purchased with state funds under this Grant 
Agreement; provided, however, that COMMERCE may be granted a security interest in real property, 
to secure funds awarded under this Grant Agreement.  This provision does not extend to claims that 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6  

 
 9 

COMMERCE may bring against the GRANTEE in recapturing funds expended in violation of this 
Grant Agreement. 

 
15. CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP OR USE FOR GRANTEE-OWNED PROPERTY  

A. The GRANTEE understands and agrees that any and all real property or facilities owned by the 
GRANTEE that are acquired, constructed, or otherwise improved by the GRANTEE using state 
funds under this Grant Agreement, shall be held and used by the GRANTEE for the purpose or 
purposes stated elsewhere in this Grant Agreement for a period of at least ten (10) years from the 
later of: (1) the date the final payment is made hereunder; or (2) the date when the facility 
improved or acquired with grant funds, or a distinct phase of the project, is made useable to the 
public for the purpose intended by the Legislature. 

B. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit the GRANTEE from selling any property or 
properties described in this section; Provided that, any such sale shall be subject to prior review 
and approval by COMMERCE, and that all proceeds from such sale shall be applied to the 
purchase price of a different facility or facilities of equal or greater value than the original facility 
and that any such new facility or facilities will be used for the purpose or purposes stated 
elsewhere in this Grant Agreement.   

C. In the event the GRANTEE is found to be out of compliance with this section, the GRANTEE shall 
repay to the state general fund the principal amount of the grant as stated on the Face Sheet, 
hereof, plus interest calculated at the rate of interest on state of Washington general obligation 
bonds issued most closely to the effective date of the legislation in which the subject facility was 
authorized.  Repayment shall be made pursuant to General Terms and Conditions Section 27 
(Recapture provision). 

 
16. CHANGE OF USE FOR LEASED PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURE 

A. The GRANTEE understands and agrees that any facility leased by the GRANTEE that is 
constructed, renovated, or otherwise improved using state funds under this Grant Agreement 
shall be used by the GRANTEE for the purpose or purposes stated elsewhere in this Grant 
Agreement for a period of at least ten (10) years from the later of: (1) the date the final payment is 
made; or (2) the date when the facility improved or acquired with grant funds, or a distinct phase 
of the project, is made useable to the public for the purpose intended by the Legislature. 

B. In the event the GRANTEE is found to be out of compliance with this section, the GRANTEE shall 
repay to the state general fund the principal amount of the grant as stated on the Face Sheet,, 
plus interest calculated at the rate of interest on state of Washington general obligation bonds 
issued most closely to the effective date of the legislation in which the subject facility was 
authorized.  Repayment shall be made pursuant to General Terms and Conditions Section 27 
(Recapture Provision). 
 

17. SIGNAGE, MARKERS AND PUBLICATIONS 
If, during the period covered by this Grant Agreement, the GRANTEE displays or circulates any 
communication, publication, or donor recognition identifying the financial participants in the Project, 
any such communication or publication must identify “The Taxpayers of Washington State” as a 
participant. 
 

18. HISTORICAL AND CULTURAL ARTIFACTS  
Prior to approval and disbursement of any funds awarded under this Contract, GRANTEE shall 
cooperate with COMMERCE to complete the requirements of Governor’s Executive Order 21-02 or 
GRANTEE shall complete a review under Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act, if 
applicable. GRANTEE agrees that the GRANTEE is legally and financially responsible for compliance 
with all laws, regulations, and agreements related to the preservation of historical or cultural 
resources and agrees to hold harmless COMMERCE and the state of Washington in relation to any 
claim related to such historical or cultural resources discovered, disturbed, or damaged as a result of 
the project funded by this Contract. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6  

 
 10 

In addition to the requirements set forth in this Contract, GRANTEE shall, in accordance with 
Governor’s Executive Order 21-02 as applicable, coordinate with Commerce and the Washington 
State Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation (“DAHP”), including any recommended 
consultation with any affected tribe(s), during Project design and prior to construction to determine the 
existence of any tribal cultural resources affected by Project.  GRANTEE agrees to avoid, minimize, 
or mitigate impacts to the cultural resource as a continuing prerequisite to receipt of funds under this 
Contract. 
 
The GRANTEE agrees that, unless the GRANTEE is proceeding under an approved historical and 
cultural monitoring plan or other memorandum of agreement, if historical or cultural artifacts are 
discovered during construction, the GRANTEE shall immediately stop construction and notify the 
local historical preservation officer and the state's historical preservation officer at DAHP, and the 
Commerce Representative identified on the Face Sheet. If human remains are uncovered, the 
GRANTEE shall report the presence and location of the remains to the coroner and local enforcement 
immediately, then contact DAHP and the concerned tribe's cultural staff or committee. 
 
The GRANTEE shall require this provision to be contained in all subcontracts for work or services 
related to the Scope of Work attached hereto. 
 
In addition to the requirements set forth in this Contract, GRANTEE agrees to comply with RCW 
27.44 regarding Indian Graves and Records; RCW 27.53 regarding Archaeological Sites and 
Resources; RCW 68.60 regarding Abandoned and Historic Cemeteries and Historic Graves; and 
WAC 25-48 regarding Archaeological Excavation and Removal Permits. 
 
Completion of the requirements of Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act shall 
substitute for completion of Governor’s Executive Order 21-02. 
 
In the event that the GRANTEE finds it necessary to amend the Scope of Work the GRANTEE may 
be required to re-comply with Governor's Executive Order 21-02, or Section 106 of the National 
Historic Preservation Act. 

 
19. REAPPROPRIATION 

A. The parties hereto understand and agree that any state funds not expended by the BIENNIUM 
CLOSE DATE listed on the Declarations page will lapse on that date unless specifically 
reappropriated by the Washington State Legislature.  If funds are so reappropriated, the state's 
obligation under the terms of this Grant Agreement shall be contingent upon the terms of such 
reappropriation. 

B. In the event any funds awarded under this Grant Agreement are reappropriated for use in a future 
biennium, COMMERCE reserves the right to assign a reasonable share of any such 
reappropriation for administrative costs. 

 
20. TERMINATION FOR FRAUD OR MISREPRESENTATION  

In the event the GRANTEE commits fraud or makes any misrepresentation in connection with the 
Grant application or during the performance of this Grant Agreement, COMMERCE reserves the right 
to terminate or amend this Grant Agreement accordingly, including the right to recapture all funds 
disbursed to the GRANTEE under the Grant Agreement. 

 
 

21. APPLICABILITY OF COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS TO ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING DESIGN 
WORK 

The “Copyright Provisions”, General Terms and Conditions Section 13, are not intended to apply to 
any architectural and engineering design work funded by this grant. 
 

22. FRAUD AND OTHER LOSS REPORTING  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6  

 
 11 

Contractor/Grantee shall report in writing all known or suspected fraud or other loss of any funds or 
other property furnished under this Contract immediately or as soon as practicable to the Commerce 
Representative identified on the Face Sheet. 
 

23. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 
Notwithstanding General Terms and Conditions Section 11 (Confidentiality/Safeguarding of 
Information, COMMERCE is a public agency subject to the Public Records Act, RCW 42.56 (the 
PRA). Under the PRA, all materials relating to the conduct of government or the performance of any 
governmental or proprietary function prepared, owned, used, or retained by COMMERCE or its 
functional equivalents are considered public records.  The PRA requires that public records 
responsive to a public records request be promptly produced unless the PRA or an “other statute” 
exempts such records from production.  This Agreement is not intended to alter COMMERCE’s 
obligations under the PRA. The parties agree that if COMMERCE receives a public records request 
for files that may include confidential information under General Terms and Conditions Section 11, 
COMMERCE will notify the other party of the request and of the date that the records will be released 
to the requester unless GRANTEE obtains a court order enjoining disclosure. If the GRANTEE fails to 
obtain the court order enjoining disclosure, COMMERCE may release the requested information on 
the date specified. If the GRANTEE obtains a court order from a court of competent jurisdiction 
enjoining disclosure pursuant to the PRA, COMMERCE shall maintain the confidentiality of the 
information per the court order. 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA DA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6 

12 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
GENERAL GRANT 

STATE FUNDS 
 

1. DEFINITIONS 
As used throughout this Grant Agreement, the following terms shall have the meaning set forth below: 
A. “Authorized Representative” shall mean the Director and/or the designee authorized in writing to 

act on the Director’s behalf. 
B. “COMMERCE” shall mean the Department of Commerce. 
C.  "GRANTEE" shall mean the entity identified on the Face Sheet performing service(s) under this 

Grant Agreement, and shall include all employees and agents of the GRANTEE. 
D. “Personal Information” shall mean information identifiable to any person, including, but not limited 

to, information that relates to a person’s name, health, finances, education, business, use or 
receipt of governmental services or other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, social 
security numbers, driver license numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial identifiers. 

E. ”State” shall mean the state of Washington. 
F. "Subgrantee/subcontractor" shall mean one not in the employment of the GRANTEE, who is 

performing all or part of those services under this Grant Agreement under a separate Grant 
Agreement with the GRANTEE.  The terms “subgrantee/subcontractor” refers to any tier. 

G.  “Subrecipient” shall mean a non-federal entity that expends federal awards received from a pass-
through entity to carry out a federal program, but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary 
of such a program. It also excludes vendors that receive federal funds in exchange for goods and/or 
services in the course of normal trade or commerce. 

H. “Vendor” shall mean an entity that agrees to provide the amount and kind of services requested by 
COMMERCE; provides services under the grant only to those beneficiaries individually determined 
to be eligible by COMMERCE and, provides services on a fee-for-service or per-unit basis with 
contractual penalties if the entity fails to meet program performance standards.  

I. “Grant Agreement” and “Agreement” shall mean the entire written agreement between 
COMMERCE and the GRANTEE, including any attachments, exhibits, documents, or materials 
incorporated by reference, and any amendments executed by the parties.  

 
2. ACCESS TO DATA 

In compliance with RCW 39.26.180, the GRANTEE shall provide access to data generated under this 
Grant Agreement to COMMERCE, the Joint Legislative Audit and Review Committee, and the Office 
of the State Auditor at no additional cost.  This includes access to all information that supports the 
findings, conclusions, and recommendations of the GRANTEE’s reports, including computer models 
and the methodology for those models. 

 
3. ADVANCE PAYMENTS PROHIBITED 

No payments in advance of or in anticipation of goods or services to be provided under this Grant 
Agreement shall be made by COMMERCE. 

 
4. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN 

This Grant Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other 
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Grant Agreement shall be 
deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

 
5. AMENDMENTS 

This Grant Agreement may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties. Such amendments shall 
not be binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind each of the parties. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA DA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6 

13 

6. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) OF 1990, PUBLIC LAW 101-336, ALSO 
REFERRED TO AS THE “ADA” 28 CFR PART 35 

The GRANTEE must comply with the ADA, which provides comprehensive civil rights protection to 
individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, public accommodations, state and local 
government services, and telecommunications. 
 

7. ASSIGNMENT 
Neither this Grant Agreement, nor any claim arising under this Grant Agreement, shall be transferred 
or assigned by the GRANTEE without prior written consent of COMMERCE. 
 

8. ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
Unless expressly permitted under another provision of the Grant Agreement, in the event of litigation 
or other action brought to enforce Grant Agreement terms, each party agrees to bear its own 
attorney’s fees and costs. 

 
9. AUDIT 

A. General Requirements 
COMMERCE reserves the right to require an audit. If required, GRANTEEs are to procure audit 
services based on the following guidelines. 
   
The GRANTEE shall maintain its records and accounts so as to facilitate audits and shall ensure 
that subgrantees also maintain auditable records.   
 
The GRANTEE is responsible for any audit exceptions incurred by its own organization or that of 
its subgrantees.   
 
COMMERCE reserves the right to recover from the GRANTEE all disallowed costs resulting from 
the audit. 
 
Responses to any unresolved management findings and disallowed or questioned costs shall be 
included with the audit report.  The GRANTEE must respond to COMMERCE requests for 
information or corrective action concerning audit issues within thirty (30) days of the date of 
request. 
 

B. State Funds Requirements 
In the event an audit is required, if the GRANTEE is a state or local government entity, the Office 
of the State Auditor shall conduct the audit.  Audits of non-profit organizations are to be 
conducted by a certified public accountant selected by the GRANTEE. 
 
The GRANTEE shall include the above audit requirements in any subcontracts. 
 
In any case, the GRANTEE’s records must be available for review by COMMERCE. 
 

C. Documentation Requirements 
The GRANTEE must send a copy of the audit report described above no later than nine (9) 
months after the end of the GRANTEE’s fiscal year(s) by sending a scanned copy to 
comacctoffice@commerce.wa.gov or a hard copy to: 
 

Department of Commerce 
ATTN:  Audit Review and Resolution Office 
1011 Plum Street SE 
PO Box 42525 
Olympia WA 98504-2525 

In addition to sending a copy of the audit, when applicable, the GRANTEE must include: 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A

mailto:comacctoffice@commerce.wa.gov


 

AAG Approved - CDA DA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6 

14 

 Corrective action plan for audit findings within three (3) months of the audit being 
received by COMMERCE.  

 Copy of the Management Letter. 
 
If the GRANTEE is required to obtain a Single Audit consistent with Circular A-133 requirements, 
a copy must be provided to COMMERCE; no other report is required.  
 

10. BREACHES OF OTHER STATE CONTRACTS 
GRANTEE is expected to comply with all other contracts executed between GRANTEE and the State 
of Washington. A breach of any other agreement entered into between GRANTEE and the State of 
Washington may, in COMMERCE's discretion, be deemed a breach of this Agreement. 

 
11. CONFIDENTIALITY/SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION 

A.  “Confidential Information” as used in this section includes:  
1. All material provided to the GRANTEE by COMMERCE that is designated as “confidential” by 

COMMERCE; 
2. All material produced by the GRANTEE that is designated as “confidential” by COMMERCE; 

and 
3. All personal information in the possession of the GRANTEE that may not be disclosed under 

state or federal law. “Personal information” includes but is not limited to information related to 
a person’s name, health, finances, education, business, use of government services, 
addresses, telephone numbers, social security number, driver’s license number and other 
identifying numbers, and “Protected Health Information” under the federal Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA).  

B. The GRANTEE shall comply with all state and federal laws related to the use, sharing, transfer, 
sale, or disclosure of Confidential Information. The GRANTEE shall use Confidential Information 
solely for the purposes of this Grant Agreement and shall not use, share, transfer, sell or disclose 
any Confidential Information to any third party except with the prior written consent of 
COMMERCE or as may be required by law. The GRANTEE shall take all necessary steps to 
assure that Confidential Information is safeguarded to prevent unauthorized use, sharing, 
transfer, sale or disclosure of Confidential Information or violation of any state or federal laws 
related thereto.  Upon request, the GRANTEE shall provide COMMERCE with its policies and 
procedures on confidentiality.  COMMERCE may require changes to such policies and 
procedures as they apply to this Grant Agreement whenever COMMERCE reasonably 
determines that changes are necessary to prevent unauthorized disclosures.  The GRANTEE 
shall make the changes within the time period specified by COMMERCE.  Upon request, the 
GRANTEE shall immediately return to COMMERCE any Confidential Information that 
COMMERCE reasonably determines has not been adequately protected by the GRANTEE 
against unauthorized disclosure.  

C. Unauthorized Use or Disclosure. The GRANTEE shall notify COMMERCE within five (5) working 
days of any unauthorized use or disclosure of any confidential information, and shall take 
necessary steps to mitigate the harmful effects of such use or disclosure.   

 
12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Notwithstanding any determination by the Executive Ethics Board or other tribunal, COMMERCE 
may, in its sole discretion, by written notice to the GRANTEE terminate this Grant Agreement if it is 
found after due notice and examination by COMMERCE that there is a violation of the Ethics in Public 
Service Act, RCW 42.52 and RCW 42.23; or any similar statute involving the GRANTEE in the 
procurement of, or performance under this Grant Agreement. 
 
Specific restrictions apply to contracting with current or former state employees pursuant to RCW 
42.52. The GRANTEE and their subcontractor(s) must identify any person employed in any capacity 
by the state of Washington that worked on this Grant Agreement, or any matter related to the project 
funded under this Grant Agreement or any other state funded project, including but not limited to 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA DA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6 

15 

formulating or drafting legislation, participating in grant procurement, planning and execution, 
awarding grants, or monitoring grants, during the 24 month period preceding the start date of this 
Grant Agreement.  Any person identified by the GRANTEE and their subcontractors(s) must be 
identified individually by name, the agency previously or currently employed by, job title or position 
held, and separation date. If it is determined by COMMERCE that a conflict of interest exists, the 
GRANTEE may be disqualified from further consideration for the award of a Grant Agreement. 

In the event this Grant Agreement is terminated as provided above, COMMERCE shall be entitled to 
pursue the same remedies against the GRANTEE as it could pursue in the event of a breach of the 
Grant Agreement by the GRANTEE.  The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided for in this 
clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law.  
The existence of facts upon which COMMERCE makes any determination under this clause shall be 
an issue and may be reviewed as provided in the “Disputes” clause of this Grant Agreement. 
 

13. COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS 
Unless otherwise provided, all Materials produced under this Grant Agreement shall be considered 
"works for hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act and shall be owned by COMMERCE.  
COMMERCE shall be considered the author of such Materials.   In the event the Materials are not 
considered “works for hire” under the U.S. Copyright laws, the GRANTEE hereby irrevocably assigns 
all right, title, and interest in all Materials, including all intellectual property rights, moral rights, and 
rights of publicity to COMMERCE effective from the moment of creation of such Materials. 
 
“Materials” means all items in any format and includes, but is not limited to, data, reports, documents, 
pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs, films, tapes, 
and/or sound reproductions.  “Ownership” includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the 
ability to transfer these rights. 
 
For Materials that are delivered under the Grant Agreement, but that incorporate pre-existing 
materials not produced under the Grant Agreement, the GRANTEE hereby grants to COMMERCE a 
nonexclusive, royalty-free, irrevocable license (with rights to sublicense to others) in such Materials to 
translate, reproduce, distribute, prepare derivative works, publicly perform, and publicly display.  The 
GRANTEE warrants and represents that the GRANTEE has all rights and permissions, including 
intellectual property rights, moral rights and rights of publicity, necessary to grant such a license to 
COMMERCE. 
 
The GRANTEE shall exert all reasonable effort to advise COMMERCE, at the time of delivery of 
Materials furnished under this Grant Agreement, of all known or potential invasions of privacy 
contained therein and of any portion of such document which was not produced in the performance of 
this Grant Agreement.  The GRANTEE shall provide COMMERCE with prompt written notice of each 
notice or claim of infringement received by the GRANTEE with respect to any Materials delivered 
under this Grant Agreement.  COMMERCE shall have the right to modify or remove any restrictive 
markings placed upon the Materials by the GRANTEE. 
 

14. DISPUTES 
Except as otherwise provided in this Grant Agreement, when a dispute arises between the parties 
and it cannot be resolved by direct negotiation, either party may request a dispute hearing with the 
Director of COMMERCE, who may designate a neutral person to decide the dispute. 
 
The request for a dispute hearing must: 

 be in writing; 

 state the disputed issues; 

 state the relative positions of the parties; 

 state the GRANTEE's name, address, and Grant Agreement number; and 

 be mailed to the Director and the other party’s (respondent’s) Grant Representative within 
three (3) working days after the parties agree that they cannot resolve the dispute. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA DA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6 

16 

 
The respondent shall send a written answer to the requestor’s statement to both the Director or the 
Director’s designee and the requestor within five (5) working days. 
 
The Director or designee shall review the written statements and reply in writing to both parties within 
ten (10) working days. The Director or designee may extend this period if necessary by notifying the 
parties. 
 
The decision shall not be admissible in any succeeding judicial or quasi-judicial proceeding. 
 
The parties agree that this dispute process shall precede any action in a judicial or quasi-judicial 
tribunal. 
 
Nothing in this Grant Agreement shall be construed to limit the parties’ choice of a mutually 
acceptable alternate dispute resolution (ADR) method in addition to the dispute hearing procedure 
outlined above.   

 
15. DUPLICATE PAYMENT 

COMMERCE shall not pay the GRANTEE, if the GRANTEE has charged or will charge the State of 
Washington or any other party under any other grant, subgrant/subcontract, or agreement, for the 
same services or expenses. The GRANTEE certifies that work to be performed under this contract 
does not duplicate any work to be charged against any other grant, subgrant/subcontract, or 
agreement. 
 

16. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
This Grant Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Washington, and the venue of any action brought hereunder shall be in the Superior Court for 
Thurston County. 

 
17. INDEMNIFICATION 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the GRANTEE shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
state of Washington, COMMERCE, agencies of the state and all officials, agents and employees of 
the state, from and against all claims for injuries or death arising out of or resulting from the 
performance of the contract. “Claim” as used in this contract, means any financial loss, claim, suit, 
action, damage, or expense, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, attributable for bodily injury, 
sickness, disease, or death, or injury to or the destruction of tangible property including loss of use 
resulting therefrom.   

The GRANTEE’S obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless includes any claim by 
GRANTEE’S agents, employees, representatives, or any subcontractor or its employees. 

The GRANTEE’S obligation shall not include such claims that may be caused by the sole negligence 
of the State and its agencies, officials, agents, and employees. If the claims or damages are caused 
by or result from the concurrent negligence of (a) the State, its agents or employees and (b) the 
GRANTEE, its subcontractors, agents, or employees, this indemnity provision shall be valid and 
enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of the GRANTEE or its subcontractors, agents, or 
employees. 

The GRANTEE waives its immunity under Title 51 RCW to the extent it is required to indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the state and its agencies, officers, agents or employees. 
 

18. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE GRANTEE 
The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created by this Grant 
Agreement.  The GRANTEE and its employees or agents performing under this Grant Agreement are 
not employees or agents of the state of Washington or COMMERCE.  The GRANTEE will not hold 
itself out as or claim to be an officer or employee of COMMERCE or of the state of Washington by 
reason hereof, nor will the GRANTEE make any claim of right, privilege or benefit which would accrue 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA DA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6 

17 

to such officer or employee under law.  Conduct and control of the work will be solely with the 
GRANTEE. 

 
19. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE 

The GRANTEE shall comply with all applicable provisions of Title 51 RCW, Industrial Insurance.  If 
the GRANTEE fails to provide industrial insurance coverage or fails to pay premiums or penalties on 
behalf of its employees as may be required by law, COMMERCE may collect from the GRANTEE the 
full amount payable to the Industrial Insurance Accident Fund.  COMMERCE may deduct the amount 
owed by the GRANTEE to the accident fund from the amount payable to the GRANTEE by 
COMMERCE under this Grant Agreement, and transmit the deducted amount to the Department of 
Labor and Industries, (L&I) Division of Insurance Services.  This provision does not waive any of L&I’s 
rights to collect from the GRANTEE.  
 

20. LAWS 
The GRANTEE shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, regulations and policies of 
local and state and federal governments, as now or hereafter amended.  
 

21. LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION 
The GRANTEE shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal licensing, accreditation and 
registration requirements or standards necessary for the performance of this Grant Agreement.  

 
22. LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY 

Only the Authorized Representative or Authorized Representative’s delegate by writing (delegation to 
be made prior to action) shall have the express, implied, or apparent authority to alter, amend, 
modify, or waive any clause or condition of this Grant Agreement.  Furthermore, any alteration, 
amendment, modification, or waiver or any clause or condition of this Grant Agreement is not 
effective or binding unless made in writing and signed by the Authorized Representative. 

 
23. NONCOMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS 

During the performance of this Grant Agreement, the GRANTEE shall comply with all federal, state, 
and local nondiscrimination laws, regulations and policies. In the event of the GRANTEE’s non-
compliance or refusal to comply with any nondiscrimination law, regulation or policy, this Grant 
Agreement may be rescinded, canceled or terminated in whole or in part, and the GRANTEE may be 
declared ineligible for further Grants with COMMERCE.  The GRANTEE shall, however, be given a 
reasonable time in which to cure this noncompliance. Any dispute may be resolved in accordance 
with the “Disputes” procedure set forth herein. The funds provided under this contract may not be 
used to fund religious worship, exercise, or instruction. No person shall be required to participate in 
any religious worship, exercise, or instruction in order to have access to the facilities funded by this 
grant. 
 

24. PAY EQUITY  
The GRANTEE agrees to ensure that “similarly employed” individuals in its workforce are 
compensated as equals, consistent with the following: 
a. Employees are “similarly employed” if the individuals work for the same employer, the 

performance of the job requires comparable skill, effort, and responsibility, and the jobs are 
performed under similar working conditions.  Job titles alone are not determinative of whether 
employees are similarly employed; 

b. GRANTEE may allow differentials in compensation for its workers if the differentials are based in 
good faith and on any of the following: 

(i) A seniority system; a merit system; a system that measures earnings by quantity or quality 
of production; a bona fide job-related factor or factors; or a bona fide regional difference in 
compensation levels. 
(ii) A bona fide job-related factor or factors may include, but not be limited to, education, 
training, or experience that is: Consistent with business necessity; not based on or derived 
from a gender-based differential; and accounts for the entire differential. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA DA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6 

18 

(iii) A bona fide regional difference in compensation level must be: Consistent with business 
necessity; not based on or derived from a gender-based differential; and account for the 
entire differential. 
 

This Grant Agreement may be terminated by COMMERCE, if COMMERCE or the Department of 
Enterprise services determines that the GRANTEE is not in compliance with this provision. 
 

25. POLITICAL ACTIVITIES 
Political activity of GRANTEE employees and officers are limited by the State Campaign Finances 
and Lobbying provisions of Chapter 42.17a RCW and the Federal Hatch Act, 5 USC 1501 - 1508.  
 
No funds may be used for working for or against ballot measures or for or against the candidacy of 
any person for public office. 

 
26. PUBLICITY 

The GRANTEE agrees not to publish or use any advertising or publicity materials in which the state of 
Washington or COMMERCE’s name is mentioned, or language used from which the connection with 
the state of Washington’s or COMMERCE’s name may reasonably be inferred or implied, without the 
prior written consent of COMMERCE.  
 

27. RECAPTURE 
In the event that the GRANTEE fails to perform this Grant Agreement in accordance with state laws, 
federal laws, and/or the provisions of this Grant Agreement, COMMERCE reserves the right to 
recapture funds in an amount to compensate COMMERCE for the noncompliance in addition to any 
other remedies available at law or in equity.  
 
Repayment by the GRANTEE of funds under this recapture provision shall occur within the time 
period specified by COMMERCE. In the alternative, COMMERCE may recapture such funds from 
payments due under this Grant Agreement. 
 

28. RECORDS MAINTENANCE 
The GRANTEE shall maintain books, records, documents, data and other evidence relating to this 
Grant Agreement and performance of the services described herein, including but not limited to 
accounting procedures and practices that sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs 
of any nature expended in the performance of this Grant Agreement.   
 
GRANTEE shall retain such records for a period of six years following the date of final payment.  At 
no additional cost, these records, including materials generated under the Grant Agreement, shall be 
subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit by COMMERCE, personnel duly 
authorized by COMMERCE, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal and state officials so 
authorized by law, regulation or agreement. 
 
If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records 
shall be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved. 
 

29. REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 
If required by law, the GRANTEE shall complete registration with the Washington State Department 
of Revenue.  
 

30. RIGHT OF INSPECTION 
At no additional cost, the GRANTEE shall provide right of access to its facilities to COMMERCE, or any 
of its officers, or to any other authorized agent or official of the state of Washington or the federal 
government, at all reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate performance, compliance, and/or 
quality assurance under this Grant Agreement.   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA DA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6 

19 

31. SAVINGS 
In the event funding from state, federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way 
after the effective date of this Grant Agreement and prior to normal completion, COMMERCE may 
terminate the Grant Agreement under the "Termination for Convenience" clause, without the ten 
calendar day notice requirement.  In lieu of termination, the Grant Agreement may be amended to 
reflect the new funding limitations and conditions.  

 
32. SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this Grant Agreement are intended to be severable.  If any term or provision is 
illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of 
the remainder of the Grant Agreement. 
 

33. SITE SECURITY 
While on COMMERCE premises, GRANTEE, its agents, employees, or subcontractors shall conform 
in all respects with physical, fire or other security policies or regulations. 

 
34. SUBGRANTING/SUBCONTRACTING 

Neither the GRANTEE nor any subgrantee/subcontractor shall enter into subgrants/subcontracts for 
any of the work contemplated under this Grant Agreement without obtaining prior written approval of 
COMMERCE.  In no event shall the existence of the subgrant/subcontract operate to release or reduce 
the liability of the GRANTEE to COMMERCE for any breach in the performance of the GRANTEE’s 
duties.  This clause does not include Grants of employment between the GRANTEE and personnel 
assigned to work under this Grant Agreement. 
 
Additionally, the GRANTEE is responsible for ensuring that all terms, conditions, assurances and 
certifications set forth in this agreement are carried forward to any subgrants/subcontracts.  Every 
subgrant/subcontract shall include a term that COMMERCE and the State of Washington are not liable 
for claims or damages arising from a subgrantee’s/subcontractor’s performance of the 
subgrant/subcontract. GRANTEE and its subgrantees/subcontractors agree not to release, divulge, 
publish, transfer, sell or otherwise make known to unauthorized persons personal information without 
the express written consent of COMMERCE or as provided by law. 

 
35. SURVIVAL 

The terms, conditions, and warranties contained in this Grant that by their sense and context are 
intended to survive the completion of the performance, cancellation or termination of this Grant shall 
so survive.  

 
36. TAXES 

All payments accrued on account of payroll taxes, unemployment contributions, the GRANTEE’s 
income or gross receipts, any other taxes, insurance or expenses for the GRANTEE or its staff shall 
be the sole responsibility of the GRANTEE.  

 
37. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

In the event COMMERCE determines the GRANTEE has failed to comply with the conditions of this 
Grant in a timely manner, COMMERCE has the right to suspend or terminate this Grant.  Before 
suspending or terminating the Grant Agreement, COMMERCE shall notify the GRANTEE in writing of 
the need to take corrective action.  If corrective action is not taken within 30 calendar days, the Grant 
Agreement may be terminated or suspended.  
 
In the event of termination or suspension, the GRANTEE shall be liable for damages as authorized by 
law including, but not limited to, any cost difference between the original Grant Agreement and the 
replacement or cover Grant Agreement and all administrative costs directly related to the replacement 
Grant Agreement, e.g., cost of the competitive bidding, mailing, advertising and staff time.   
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA DA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6 

20 

COMMERCE reserves the right to suspend all or part of the Grant Agreement, withhold further 
payments, or prohibit the GRANTEE from incurring additional obligations of funds during investigation 
of the alleged compliance breach and pending corrective action by the GRANTEE or a decision by 
COMMERCE to terminate the Grant Agreement.  A termination shall be deemed a “Termination for 
Convenience” if it is determined that the GRANTEE: (1) was not in default; or (2) failure to perform 
was outside of his or her control, fault or negligence.   
The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this Grant Agreement are not exclusive and are, 
in addition to any other rights and remedies, provided by law.   

 
38. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

Except as otherwise provided in this Grant Agreement, COMMERCE may, by ten (10) business days 
written notice, beginning on the second day after the mailing, terminate this Grant Agreement, in 
whole or in part.  If this Grant Agreement is so terminated, COMMERCE shall be liable only for 
payment required under the terms of this Grant Agreement for services rendered or goods delivered 
prior to the effective date of termination.  
 

39. TERMINATION PROCEDURES 
Upon termination of this Grant Agreement, COMMERCE, in addition to any other rights provided in 
this Grant Agreement, may require the GRANTEE to deliver to COMMERCE any property specifically 
produced or acquired for the performance of such part of this Grant Agreement as has been 
terminated.  The provisions of the "Treatment of Assets" clause shall apply in such property transfer. 
 
COMMERCE shall pay to the GRANTEE the agreed upon price, if separately stated, for completed 
work and services accepted by COMMERCE, and the amount agreed upon by the GRANTEE and 
COMMERCE for (i) completed work and services for which no separate price is stated, (ii) partially 
completed work and services, (iii) other property or services that are accepted by COMMERCE, and 
(iv) the protection and preservation of property, unless the termination is for default, in which case the 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE shall determine the extent of the liability of COMMERCE.  Failure 
to agree with such determination shall be a dispute within the meaning of the "Disputes" clause of this 
Grant Agreement.  COMMERCE may withhold from any amounts due the GRANTEE such sum as 
the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE determines to be necessary to protect COMMERCE against 
potential loss or liability. 
 
The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this section shall not be exclusive and are in 
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Grant Agreement. 
 
After receipt of a notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed by the AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE, the GRANTEE shall: 
 
1. Stop work under the Grant Agreement on the date, and to the extent specified, in the notice; 
2. Place no further orders or subgrants/subcontracts for materials, services, or facilities except as 

may be necessary for completion of such portion of the work under the Grant Agreement that is 
not terminated; 

3. Assign to COMMERCE, in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by the 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, all of the rights, title, and interest of the GRANTEE under the 
orders and subgrants/subcontracts so terminated, in which case COMMERCE has the right, at its 
discretion, to settle or pay any or all claims arising out of the termination of such orders and 
subgrants/subcontracts; 

4. Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders and 
subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE to the 
extent AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE may require, which approval or ratification shall be 
final for all the purposes of this clause; 

5. Transfer title to COMMERCE and deliver in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed 
by the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE any property which, if the Grant Agreement had been 
completed, would have been required to be furnished to COMMERCE; 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

AAG Approved - CDA DA GRANT AGREEMENT – VER 6 

21 

6. Complete performance of such part of the work as shall not have been terminated by the 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE; and 

7. Take such action as may be necessary, or as the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE may direct, 
for the protection and preservation of the property related to this Grant Agreement, which is in the 
possession of the GRANTEE and in which COMMERCE has or may acquire an interest. 

 
40. TREATMENT OF ASSETS 

Title to all property furnished by COMMERCE shall remain in COMMERCE.  Title to all property 
furnished by the GRANTEE, for the cost of which the GRANTEE is entitled to be reimbursed as a direct 
item of cost under this Grant Agreement, shall pass to and vest in COMMERCE upon delivery of such 
property by the GRANTEE.  Title to other property, the cost of which is reimbursable to the GRANTEE 
under this Grant Agreement, shall pass to and vest in COMMERCE upon (i) issuance for use of such 
property in the performance of this Grant Agreement, or (ii) commencement of use of such property in 
the performance of this Grant Agreement, or (iii) reimbursement of the cost thereof by COMMERCE in 
whole or in part, whichever first occurs. 
A. Any property of COMMERCE furnished to the GRANTEE shall, unless otherwise provided herein 

or approved by COMMERCE, be used only for the performance of this Grant Agreement. 
B. The GRANTEE shall be responsible for any loss or damage to property of COMMERCE that results 

from the negligence of the GRANTEE or which results from the failure on the part of the GRANTEE 
to maintain and administer that property in accordance with sound management practices. 

C. If any COMMERCE property is lost, destroyed or damaged, the GRANTEE shall immediately notify 
COMMERCE and shall take all reasonable steps to protect the property from further damage. 

D. The GRANTEE shall surrender to COMMERCE all property of COMMERCE prior to settlement 
upon completion, termination or cancellation of this Grant Agreement 

 
All reference to the GRANTEE under this clause shall also include GRANTEE'S employees, 
agents or subgrantees/subcontractors. 

 
41. WAIVER 

Waiver of any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default or 
breach.  Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Grant Agreement 
unless stated to be such in writing and signed by Authorized Representative of COMMERCE. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

22 

 

 
ATTACHMENT A - SCOPE OF WORK 

 
Funds awarded under this grant will be used by the City of Shelton for capital expenditures for the 
Shelton Water Reclamation Facility project. Funds will be used to improve the existing headworks and 
addition of a new primary screen headworks at the Reclaimed Water Treatment Plant to accommodate 
flows beyond the 20 year planning period identified in the City’s General Sewer/Wastewater Facility Plan. 
The Project is located at 10891 U.S. Highway 101, Shelton, WA 98584.  
 
This Project will benefit the public with significant environmental benefit realized as the reclaimed water 
plant is utilized in treating wastewater that is then recycled, re-used, and excess treated water not utilized 
is infiltrated back into the ground. The upgrades to the plant will allow the City to treat wastewater more 
efficiently and effectively at the plant and has been recognized as a significant resource in helping 
instream flows within the Goldsborough Creek drainage basin. The Project with other future projects aims 
to gradually decrease the City's discharges into Oakland Bay. This reduction will not only lessen adverse 
effects on the local shellfish industry but also improve the overall water quality of the bay. 
 
Project activities will include and not be limited to: 
 

 Building Permits/Fees 

 Construction Labor and Materials 

 Construction Management 
 
The project will begin June 2024 and is expected to be completed by June 2025. 
 
Costs related to the work will only be reimbursed to the extent the work is determined by Commerce to be 
within the scope of the legislative appropriation. 
 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that the declaration set forth above has been reviewed and 
approved by the GRANTEE’s governing body as of the date and year written below. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
GRANTEE 
 
______________________________________ 
TITLE 
 
_____________________________________ 
DATE 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

23 

 

ATTACHMENT B - CERTIFICATION OF THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS TO COMPLETE THE 
PROJECT  

 

Type of Funding Source Description Amount 

Grant Washington State Department of Commerce $3,200,000.00 

Other Grants 

Grant #1  $ 

Total Other Grants  $0.00 

Other Loans 

Loan #1  $ 

Total Loans  $0.00 

Other Local Revenue 

Source #1 City of Shelton - City Sewer Utility Funds $465,000.00 

Total Local Revenue  $465,000.00 

Other Funds 

Source #1  $ 

Total Other Funds  $0.00 

Total Project Funding  $3,665,000.00 

 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that project funding from sources other than those provided by 
this Grant Agreement and identified above has been reviewed and approved by the GRANTEE’s 
governing body or board of directors, as applicable, and has either been expended for eligible Project 
expenses, or is committed in writing and available and will remain committed and available solely and 
specifically for carrying out the purposes of this Project as described in elsewhere in this Grant 
Agreement, as of the date and year written below. The GRANTEE shall maintain records sufficient to 
evidence that it has expended or has access to the funds needed to complete the Project, and shall make 
such records available for COMMERCE’s review upon reasonable request. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
GRANTEE 
 
_____________________________________ 
TITLE 
 
_____________________________________ 
DATE 

 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

24 

 

ATTACHMENT C - CERTIFICATION OF THE PAYMENT AND REPORTING OF PREVAILING WAGES 
 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that all contractors and subcontractors performing work on the 
Project shall comply with prevailing wage laws set forth in Chapter 39.12 RCW, as applicable on the date 
the appropriation becomes effective, including but not limited to the filing of the “Statement of Intent to 
Pay Prevailing Wages” and “Affidavit of Wages Paid” as required by RCW 39.12.040.  The GRANTEE 
shall maintain records sufficient to evidence compliance with Chapter 39.12 RCW, and shall make such 
records available for COMMERCE’s review upon request.  
 
If any state funds are used by the GRANTEE for the purpose of construction, applicable State Prevailing 
Wages must be paid. 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that the declaration set forth above has been reviewed and 
approved by the GRANTEE’s governing body as of the date and year written below. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
GRANTEE 
 
______________________________________ 
TITLE 
 
_____________________________________ 
DATE  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 

25 

 

ATTACHMENT D - CERTIFICATION OF INTENT TO ENTER THE LEADERSHIP IN ENERGY AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN (LEED) CERTIFICATION PROCESS 

 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that it will enter into the Leadership in Energy and 
Environmental Design certification process, as stipulated in RCW 39.35D, as applicable to the Project 
funded by this Grant Agreement.  The GRANTEE shall, upon receipt of LEED certification by the United 
States Green Building Council, provide documentation of such certification to COMMERCE. 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that the declaration set forth above has been reviewed and 
approved by the GRANTEE’s governing body or board of directors, as applicable, as of the date and year 
written below. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
GRANTEE 
 
______________________________________ 
TITLE 
 
_____________________________________ 
DATE 
 
 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A



 
 

Budget Authorization   

Grant Manager   

Grant Manager   

Managing Director  
 

  

Deputy Assistant Director 
 

  

Assistant Director  
 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A21CEF92-BF17-4090-AED5-C003621EE76A

5/14/2024 | 1:55 PM PDT

Erin LaLonde

Lena Moore

5/14/2024 | 2:01 PM PDT



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: A21CEF92BF174090AED5C003621EE76A Status: Sent

Subject: Complete with DocuSign: Contract_22-96515-050.docx, DocuSign routing Checklist.docx

Division: 

Local Government

Program: The Infrastructure Projects

ContractNumber: 22-96515-050

DocumentType: Contract

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 29 Signatures: 0 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 2 Lena Moore

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

1011 Plum Street SE

MS 42525

Olympia, WA  98504-2525

lena.moore@commerce.wa.gov

IP Address: 198.238.75.161 

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             5/14/2024 1:21:04 PM

Holder: Lena Moore

             lena.moore@commerce.wa.gov

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: Washington State Department of Commerce Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Erin LaLonde

erin.lalonde@commerce.wa.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 198.239.10.193

Sent: 5/14/2024 1:43:04 PM

Viewed: 5/14/2024 1:54:16 PM 

Signed: 5/14/2024 1:55:58 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Lena Moore

lena.moore@commerce.wa.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 198.238.75.161

Sent: 5/14/2024 1:56:00 PM

Viewed: 5/14/2024 2:01:09 PM 

Signed: 5/14/2024 2:01:18 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Mark Ziegler, City Manager

mark.ziegler@sheltonwa.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 5/14/2024 2:01:21 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 4/12/2024 9:41:26 AM
      ID: ecfcccd1-b431-4b7e-8c89-5fb91acc0cf1

Lena Moore

lena.moore@commerce.wa.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign



Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Addeline Craig

addeline.craig@commerce.wa.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Tony Hanson

tony.hanson@commerce.wa.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Mark Barkley

mark.barkley@commerce.wa.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Aaron Nix, Capital Projects Manager

aaron.nix@sheltonwa.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 5/14/2024 2:01:20 PM

Viewed: 5/14/2024 2:56:33 PM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Sheila Lee

sheila.lee@commerce.wa.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 5/14/2024 1:43:04 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

From time to time, Washington State Department of Commerce (we, us or Company) may be 

required by law to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the 

terms and conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the 

DocuSign system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can 

access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and 

Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to 

‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the 

DocuSign system. 

 

Getting paper copies  

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 

to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 

elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 

(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 

send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 

$0.15 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 

procedure described below. 

 

Withdrawing your consent  

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below. 

 

Consequences of changing your mind  

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 

receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 

from us. 

 

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 8/11/2020 4:44:12 PM
Parties agreed to: Mark Ziegler, City Manager



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us. 

 

How to contact Washington State Department of Commerce:  

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: docusign@commerce.wa.gov 

 

To advise Washington State Department of Commerce of your new email address  

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at docusign@commerce.wa.gov and 

in the body of such request you must state: your previous email address, your new email 

address.  We do not require any other information from you to change your email address.  

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 

account preferences.  

 

To request paper copies from Washington State Department of Commerce  

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to docusign@commerce.wa.gov and in 

the body of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and 

telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 

 

To withdraw your consent with Washington State Department of Commerce  

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 



i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page, 

select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an email to docusign@commerce.wa.gov and in the body of such request you must 

state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any other 

information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing consent for 

online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process.. 

 

Required hardware and software  

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 

current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-

signing-system-requirements.  

 

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically  

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 

read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 

your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 

where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 

if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 

herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before 

clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm 

that: 

 You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and 

 You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send 

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future 

reference and access; and 

 Until or unless you notify Washington State Department of Commerce as described 

above, you consent to receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, 

disclosures, authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to 

be provided or made available to you by Washington State Department of Commerce 

during the course of your relationship with Washington State Department of Commerce. 

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements
https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements


Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G1) 

Touch Date: 04/03/2024 
Brief Date:       05/21//2024  
Action Date:  06/04/2024 

 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris, Public Works Director 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
    6-Year Transportation Improvement 
    Plan (TIP) 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
    - Resolution No. 1329-0424  
    - Public Hearing Notice 
    - 6 Year TIP 2025-2030 
    - TIP Definition of Information  
       Codes 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Per RCW 35.77.010, the purpose of the 6-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) is, “…to assure that 
each city and town shall perpetually have available advanced plans looking to the future for not less than six 
years as a guide in carrying out a coordinated transportation program”. 
 
The TIP is used by several state and federal agencies and serves multiple purposes. It is mainly for local 
agencies to prioritize their transportation projects anticipated to be done during the next six years, as well as for 
the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) to know what projects are anticipated, to list 
those projects that have federal and/or state funding secured, to identify those projects that are anticipating 
state or federal funding that is not yet secured, and to allow WSDOT to create a list of projects for the Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). Federally funded projects must be incorporated into the STIP 
before money will be disbursed to a local agency. Washington State Law requires the annual adoption of the 6-
Year TIP take place after a public hearing, and to submit the adopted 6-year TIP to WSDOT within 30 days of 
its passage. With the recent code changes relevant to Transportation Impact Fees (TIF), the TIP includes 
projects that provide additional capacity to the City’s transportation system and are now eligible for applying 
traffic impact fees to these projects, in accordance with City of Shelton code. 
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
This is a requirement of Washington State. 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
N/A 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Public Notice for the Public Hearing was published in the Shelton Mason County Journal, as required by 
Washington state law. Further information can be obtained through the Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to adopt Resolution No. 1329-0424 as presented.” 



RESOLUTION NO. 1329-0424 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON ADOPTING THE COMPREHENSIVE SIX (6) 
YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FOR THE CITY OF SHELTON FOR THE  

YEARS 2025 THROUGH 2030 
 

 
WHEREAS, a study has been completed by the City Engineering Department and approved by the City 
Manager in which a Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) has been 
prepared for the six (6) year period 2025 through 2030, that shows the street locations, improvements 
that are to be made within the six (6) year period, and the estimated cost of each improvement; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Shelton held a public hearing on the Comprehensive Six (6) 
Year Transportation Improvement Program at 6:00 pm on the 21st day of May, 2024 in an open public 
meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2030 draft TIP includes projects that provide for additional capacity to Shelton’s 
roadway network and have been identified as such within the TIP; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment received was considered and incorporated, if applicable, into the Plan 
prepared by the City of Shelton relative to the Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation Improvement 
Program for the City of Shelton. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as follows: 
 

1. That the attached table be adopted as the Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation 
Improvement Program for the City of Shelton. 

2. That the table attached hereto is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this 
Resolution. 

3. That this adoption of a Transportation Improvement Program is for the purpose of complying 
with the provisions of RCW 35.77, 36.81, 46.68, and 47.26 relating to the planning and financing 
of street and highway programs. 

 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on the 21st day of May 2024. 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko  
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault  
 
 



 
 

 
CITY OF SHELTON 

525 WEST COTA STREET 
SHELTON, WASHINGTON 

(360) 426-4491 
 
 

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, is 
declaring its intention to hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, May 21, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., at the 
Shelton Civic Center to hear testimony regarding the proposed Six (6) Year Transportation 
Improvement Program for the City of Shelton.  All persons who desire to give testimony 
regarding the proposed program should appear before the Council and present their testimony at 
said hearing to be held at the Shelton Civic Center, 525 West Cota Street.  Copies of the 
proposed plan are available from the Public Works Department. 
 
Interested persons may appear and present their testimony at the hearing, or written comments 
may be submitted to the City Clerk, City of Shelton, 525 W. Cota Street, Shelton, WA 98584 or 
emailed to donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov, no later than 5:00 p.m., on Tuesday, May 21, 2024. 
 
 



O
th

er

16 03 05 12 32 W S P G C O CE NO

16 12 32 W S P G C O CE YES

17 05 32 W S P G C O CE NO

12 05 12 W S P G C O EIS NO

17 03 05 06 12 32 W S P G C O CE NO

14 06 32 W S P G C O CE NO

TBD 14 03 06 32 W S P G C O CE NO

14 12 32 W S P G C O CE NO

16 03 05 06 32 W S P G C O CE NO

17 06 12 32 W S P G C O CE NO

17 06 12 W S P G C O CE NO

17 03 06 12 32 W S P G C O CE YES

12 02 12 W S P G C O CE YES

14 05 06 32 W S P G C O CE NO

TBD 00 06 12 32 W S P G C 0 CE YES

TBD 00 CE NO

00 12 CE NO

TBD 00 03 W S P G C 0 CE NO

00 06 12 32 W S P G C 0 EA

TBD 00 06 12 32 W S P G C 0 CE NO

00 32 W S P G C 0 CE NO

17 W S P G C 0 EA

17 W S P G C 0 EA

17 EA NO

16 6 CE NO

TAlpine Way Roadway Improvements Alpine Drive Approx. 1300 West Major Collector roadway improvements (Olympic Heights) P $1,500,000 $0 04 07

1
TIP 2025‐2030Report Dated:  5/23/2024

Oakland Bay Jr. High Pedestrian Improve. Wallace Kneeland School Entrance Pedestrian Crossing Improvements P $100,000 $0 12

T

Satsop Avenue Roadway Improvements Deegan Road Grandview Heights Major collector roadway improvements (Coffee Creek) P $1,200,000 $0 04 07 T

Critical Pedestrian Map City Wide City Wide Construction cost estimate will be updated with the 

Comprehensive Plan Update, occurring in 2024/2025.
P $50,000 $50,000

T

Cross Town Trail (Phase II, SR 3). W. Hulbert Rd

Park and Ride

Kneeland Park Multi‐Use Regional Trail P $1,800,000 $0 T

Cross Town Trail (Phase I, Former Simpson Railroad

Property)

City Limits Kneeland Park Multi‐use regional trail S $1,600,000 $0

Rail/Highway Crossing Removal Projects SR 3, S 7th Street, 

Hulbert Road East

SR 3, S 7th Street, 

Hulbert Road East

Remove existing railroad track and update map P $678,409 $0 07 T

Transportation Improvement Plan (Part of the City's

Comprehensive Plan Update)

City Wide City Wide Update existing 2017 plan, TIF table, and non‐motorized plan. P $100,000 $100,000

T

Pavement Maintenance Program‐Johns Prairie Road N 13th City Limits Roadway improvements including pavement replacement and 

ADA
P $304,585 $41,118 07

Systemic Safety Pedestrian Improvements City Wide City Wide RRFB at Olympic Highway North and I Street, W. Railroad Ave 

and

3rd St., and Olympic Highway South and Bellevue Ave

S $1,295,000 $0

T

North 13th‐5435/Shelton Springs Roads 5432 N 13th Shelton Springs

Rd

Signal or Roundabout to improve traffic flow and pedestrian 

safety
P $3,300,000 $3,300,000 07 10 T

NB SR 3 reroute from 1st to Front Street 1st Street Front Street Feasibility study and cost estimate P $50,000 $50,000 07

T

Angleside Road 5426 / 7th Street Cota Street Turner Avenue Guardrail, sidewalk, ROW acquisition, pavement, storm drainage, 

and illumination improvements
P $3,000,000 $3,000,000 07 T

K Street 5461/ Northcliff Intersection 5463 Intersection Intersection Sight distance improvements for pedestrian safety P $2,000,000 $2,000,000

T

Turner Avenue 5434 1st Street Angleside Road Roadway improvements including paving, channelization, storm

drainage,
P $1,000,000 $1,000,000 07 T

Railroad Avenue 5640 (Shelton UGA, Mason County) City limits Deegan Road Curb, gutter, sidewalk, upsize water main and extend gravity

sewer.
P $6,000,000 $6,000,000

T

Railroad Avenue 5640 1st Street 7th Street Roadway improvements including pavement  replacement,  ADA

and signal upgrades, and 14 inch water main replacement
P $4,000,000 $400,000 07 T

Olympic Highway North 5465 "C" Street to "I" and 

Wallace Kneeland 

Intersection

Wallace‐ Kneeland 

Blvd

Roadway improvements including pavement grinding, overlay, 

illumination, sidewalk, signal and ADA access upgrades
P $5,898,614 $29,862 07

T

Western Gateway Phase C ‐ West Downtown 7th to 12th Alder to Cota Roadway improvements including paving, illumination, sidewalks

and ADA access
P $2,000,000 $2,000,000 07 T

Brockdale Road 5435 Wallace‐

Kneeland Blvd

N City Limits Roadway improvements including pavement stabilization, storm

drainage, landscaping, sidewalk and ADA access
P $1,500,000 $1,500,000 07

T

North Shelton Interchange Upgrade SR101 Wallace‐ Kneeland

Blvd

Roadway improvements including widening, channelization,

intersection and SR101 NB exit ramp improvements
P $7,200,000 $7,200,000 07 10 T

Western Gateway ‐ 7th Street 5426 Alder Street Cota Street Roadway improvements including paving, sidewalks and ADA 

access, intersection improvements including signalization 

upgrades

P $3,750,000 $3,750,000 07

T

Wallace‐Kneeland Blvd 5439 / N. 13th Intersection 

5435

Intersection Intersection Signal Improvements at Wallace‐Kneeland and North 13th Street P $2,736,766 $2,736,766 T

Wallace‐Kneeland Blvd 5439 / Shelton Springs Road 

5432

Intersection Intersection Signal Improvements Wallace‐Kneeland and Shelton Springs P $1,627,856 $877,856

Shelton

Mason County #23

City No. 1165  MPO/RTPO: NON/PEN

Transportation Improvement Program ‐ All Years/All Phase

From 2025‐2030 Hearing: 5‐21‐2024 Adoption Date: 6‐4‐2024 Resolution No. 1329‐0424

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 N

u
m

b
er

Project Name

Project Limits

Description Fu
n

d
in

g 
St

at
u

s

Fe
d

er
al

 A
id

 N
u

m
b

er

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

o
st

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 C

it
y 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n

Fu
n

ct
io

n
al

 C
la

ss

Improvement Type Utilities

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l C

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n

R
/W

 N
ee

d
ed

? 
(A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 

D
at

e)

B
eg

in
n

in
g

En
d

N
ew

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 (
0

1
)

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 (

0
2

)

R
ec

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 (

0
3

)

M
aj

o
r 

W
id

en
in

g 
(0

4
)

M
in

o
r 

W
id

en
in

g 
(0

5
)

O
th

er
 E

n
h

an
ce

m
en

ts
 (

0
6

)

R
es

u
rf

ac
in

g 
(0

7
)

N
ew

 B
ri

d
ge

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

(0
8

)

B
ri

d
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
(0

9
)

B
ri

d
ge

 R
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

o
n

 (
1

0
) 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

M
in

o
r 

B
ri

d
ge

 R
eh

ab
. (

1
1

) 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Sa
fe

ty
 (

1
2

) 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l (

1
3

) 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

W
at

er
,  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Se
w

er
,  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

P
o

w
er

,  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

G
as

,  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
ab

le
 T

V
,  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Te
le

p
h

o
n

e,
   

   
   

   
   

  

O
th

er
   

   
   

   

San Joaquin/Otter Street Avenue Ped Improvements N 1st Street Otter/Chestnut Capitol Hill Critical Pedestrian Route Improvements (Bear Street 

Subdivision)
P $500,000 $0 05 12



St
ar

t 
D

at
e

O
u

ts
id

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
%

)

St
ar

t 
D

at
e

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 P

h
as

e 
C

o
st

O
u

ts
id

e 
Fu

n
d

in
g 

So
u

rc
e

O
u

ts
id

e 
Fu

n
d

in
g 

So
u

rc
e

2026 WSDOT-AT

2027 2026 $65,000

2027

2027

2028

2028

2024 WSDOT-AT, TIB

2031

2032

2033

2034

2035

2025

2036

2024 2024 $70,000 LRSP

2024 STBG‐U

2025

2025 RHCP

2024

2024

2025

2027

2025

2025

2025 WSDOT-AT

Alpine Way Roadway Improvements $250,000 2025 $1,250,000 $150,000

Report Dated:  5/23/2024
2

TIP 2025‐2030

Oakland Bay Jr. High School Pedestrian 

Improvements

$100,000 2025 $100,000 100% $100,000

$200 $1,500

Critical Pedestrian Map $50,000 2025

Satsop Avenue Roadway Improvements $200,000 2029 $1,500,000

$50

Cross Town Trail (Phase II, SR 3) $250,000 2025 $1,550,000 100% $1,550

Cross Town Trail (Phase I, Simpson) $200,000 2025 $1,400,000 100% $1400

Transportation Improvement Plan (Consultant 

Support to update City's Comprehensive Plan)

$100,000 2025

Rail/Highway Crossing Removal Projects $175,787 RHCP 2025 $502,622 100% $679

$100

Pavement Maintenance Program‐Johns Prairie Road $65,000 2025 86.5% $65

Systemic Safety Pedestrian Improvements $155,000 LRSP 2025 $1,070,000 $1,070

NB SR 3 reroute from 1st to Front Street $50,000 2035

North 13th‐5435/Shelton Springs Roads 5432 $495,000 2036 $2,805,000

$0 $50

Angleside Road 5426 / 7th Street $450,000 2035 $2,550,000

K Street 5461/ Northcliff Intersection 5463 $300,000 2034 $1,700,000

Railroad Avenue 5640 $900,000 2032

Turner Avenue 5434 $150,000 2033 $850,000

$5,100,000

Railroad Avenue 5640 $600,000 2031 $3,400,000

Olympic Highway North 5465 $396,640 2025 $4,701,974 99% $5,900

$300 $1,700

Brockdale Road 5435 $30,000 2028

Western Gateway Phase C ‐ West Downtown $300,000 2029 $1,700,000

$278,000

$3,751

$1800 $6,120

$30 $278

North Shelton Interchange Upgrade $1,080,000 2027 $6,120,000

Western Gateway ‐ 7th Street 5426 $562,500 2027 $3,187,500

$1,480

Wallace‐Kneeland Blvd 5439 / N. 13th Intersection 

5435

$202,166 2028 $2,469,600 $202 $65 $2,969

Wallace‐Kneeland Blvd 5439 / Shelton Springs Road 

5432

$147,856 2026 $1,479,999 50% $148

Shelton

Mason County #23

City No. 1165  MPO/RTPO: NON/PEN

Transportation Improvement Program ‐ All Years/All Phase

From 2025‐2030 Hearing: 5‐21‐2024 Adoption Date: 6‐4‐2024 Resolution No. 1329‐0424

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 N

u
m

b
er

Project Name

Project Phase Expenditure Schedule  ($1,000)

Preliminary Engineering (Planning) Right‐of Way (Equip 

Purchase)

Construction

Ye
ar

 1
 (

2
0

2
5

)

Ye
ar

 2
 (

2
0

2
6

)

Ye
ar

 3
 (

2
0

2
7

)

Ye
ar

 4
 (

2
0

2
8

)

Ye
ar

 5
 (

2
0

2
9

)

Ye
ar

 6
 (

2
0

3
0

)

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 P

h
as

e 
C

o
st

O
u

ts
id

e 
Fu

n
d

in
g 

So
u

rc
e

O
u

ts
id

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
%

)

St
ar

t 
D

at
e

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 P

h
as

e 
C

o
st

O
u

ts
id

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
%

)

1
TIP 2025‐2030

San Joaquin/Otter Street Avenue Pedestrian 

Improvements 

$500,000 2025 $500,000 $500,000



1
TIP 2025‐2030

Transportation Improvement Program ‐ All Years/All Phase

From 2025‐2030 Hearing: 5‐21‐2024 Adoption Date: 6‐4‐2024 Resolution No. 1329‐0424



2
TIP 2025‐2030

Transportation Improvement Program ‐ All Years/All Phase

From 2025‐2030 Hearing: 5‐21‐2024 Adoption Date: 6‐4‐2024 Resolution No. 1329‐0424

1
TIP 2025‐2030



Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
Definition of Information Codes 

 
The following descriptive codes are used in the TIP program provided by WSDOT. The following is a list of the 
meaning of various codes used in the TIP table. 
 
Functional Classification 

 Urban (Over 5000 population) 
 00 – No Classification 
 11 – Interstate 
 12 – Freeways & Expressways 
 14 – Other Principal Arterials 
 16 – Minor Arterial 
 17 – Collector 
 19 – Local Access 
 
 
Improvement Type Codes 

 01 – New Construction on New Alignment  08 – New Bridge Construction 
 02 – Relocation 09 – Bridge Replacement  
 03 – Reconstruction  10 – Bridge Rehabilitation 
 04 – Major Widening  11 – Minor Bridge Rehabilitation 
 05 – Minor Widening  12 – Safety/ Traffic Operation/TSM 
 06 – Other Enhancements  13 – Environmentally Related 
 07 – Resurfacing  32 – Non Motor Vehicle Project 

 
 

Funding Status 

S - Project is selected by the appropriate selection body and funding has been secured by the lead agency. 
P - Project is subject to selection by an agency other than the lead and is listed for planning purposes. (Funding 
has not been determined.) 
 
 
Utility Codes 

 W – Water 
 S – Sewer (other than agency-owned) 
 P – Power 
 G – Gas  
 C – Cable TV   
 T – Telephone      
 O – Other      
 
 
Environmental Data Type 

 EIS – Environmental Impact Statement 
 EA – Environmental Assessment 
 CE – Categorical Exclusion  

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G2) 

Touch Date:  05/07/2024  
Brief Date:    05/21/2024        
Action Date:  06/04/2024  

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris, Public Works Director 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Work Order with SCJ Alliance for 
Transportation Comprehensive Plan 
Update 
   
ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution No. 1332-0524  
- Work Order No. SCJ-24016 

   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head     J.O.H 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Council approved an Inter Local Agreement (ILA) between Mason County and the City on September 19, 2023 
for the City and County to work with SCJ Alliance in the preparation of Comprehensive Plans for each 
respective agency. The Comprehensive Plan is required by RCW 36.70A, Growth Management, and is a long-
range 20-year plan for the City updated every 10 years that captures the vision of where the community wants 
to be in the future. Mandatory elements to be included in the plan are described in RCW 36.70A.070, and WAC 
365-196-400, to include items such as future land use maps, land use types, housing needs, capital facilities, 
utilities, transportation, economic development, parks & recreation, and goals for the plan to achieve the 20-
year vision. 
 
The Water and Wastewater Comprehensive plans were completed by consultants for the City and adopted by 
Council in 2023 by resolution numbers 1283-0723 and 1282-0723 respectively. The Stormwater 
Comprehensive Plan update is planned to be completed in FY 2025. Elements from each of the detailed 
adopted Comprehensive plans will be used in the overall Comprehensive Plan for the City. 
 
The Public Works Department FY 2024 budget included $100,000 for efforts to update the existing 
Transportation Comprehensive Plan, previously completed in 2017. SCJ Alliance has a current contract with 
the City under the On-Call Qualified Pool List for Traffic Engineering, and the City intends to issue Work Order 
No. SCJ-24016 for them to complete the additional work. The attached Work Order provides a description of 
the tasks that will be performed to complete the Transportation Comprehensive Plan update. 
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The City could elect not to move forward with the transportation system analysis, but the identified 
transportation planning work will need to be completed by December of 2025 for the City to conform with State 
land use requirements. 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
$100,000 was budgeted in the 2024 City Budget to complete the updated Transportation Comprehensive Plan. 
SCJ proposes to complete the requested work for $89,000. 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
All past and the current analysis are available for public review and input which can be obtained by contacting 
the Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to adopt Resolution No. 1332-0524 as written.” 



   

RESOLUTION NO. 1332-0524 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE A PUBLIC WORKS ON-CALL CONSULTANT ROSTER 
WORK ORDER FOR COMPLETION OF AN UPDATE TO THE TRANSPORATION COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City is required by RCW 35.70A, Growth Management, to update the City Comprehensive 
Plan every 10 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan update is a long-range 20-year plan for the City that captures 
the vision of where the community wants to be in the future. Mandatory elements to be included in the 
plan per RCW 36.70A.070, are items such as future land use maps, land use types, housing needs, capital 
facilities, utilities, transportation, economic development, parks & recreation, and goals for the plan to 
achieve the 20-year vision; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and Mason County entered into an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) last September to 
have SCJ Alliance complete both the City and County Comprehensive Plans; and 
 
WHEREAS; the Water and Wastewater Comprehensive plans were completed by consultants for the City 
and adopted by Council in 2023 by Resolution numbers 1283-0723 and 1282-0723 respectively. The 
Stormwater Comprehensive Plan update is planned to be completed in FY 2025. Elements from each of 
the detailed adopted plans will be used in the overall Comprehensive Plan for the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the transportation elements identified in the 2017 City Comprehensive Plan need to be 
updated; and  
 
WHEREAS; The Public Works Department 2024 budget included $100,000 to prepare an updated 
Transportation Comprehensive Plan that will replace the current 2017 Transportation Plan elements; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS; SCJ Alliance has a current contract with the City under the On-Call Qualified Pool List for 
Traffic Engineering, and the City intends to issue Work Order No. SCJ-24016 to them for completion of 
the requested work.  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, that the City 
Manager is authorized to execute Work Order Number SCJ-24016, and any subsequent amendments, 
for SCJ Alliance to complete the updates to the Transportation Comprehensive Plan. 
 
INTRODUCED on the 21st of May 2024 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting on the 4th of 
June 2024. 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault 



Work Order SCJ-24016 
Date: May 7, 2024

Task: Transportation Comprehensive Plan Update

To:  SCJ Alliance

Scope of Work: SCJ Alliance will update the City 2017 Transportation Comprehensive Plan as 
a part of the overall City Comprehensive Plan Update, currently underway, as described in 
Exhibit A, attached hereto.

Budget:  $89,000.00

Task Order Contact Information
City of Shelton SCJ Alliance

Name: Jay Harris, PE Name: Ryan Shea
Phone: 360.490.8567 Phone: 360.352.1465
Email Address: jay.harris@sheltonwa.gov Email Address: ryan.shea@scjalliance.com

Approving Signatures
City of Shelton: Date: 

Mark Ziegler, City Manager
SCJ Alliance: Date:

Scott Sawyer, PE, Principal

This work shall be done according to the contractual agreement titled, On-Call Qualified Pool List, 
Traffic Engineering between City of Shelton and SCJ Alliance dated February 23, 2021.

Invoices pertaining to assigned Work Orders shall be accompanied by a completed Billing Voucher, 
referencing the Work Order Number (located at the top of this form), and shall be submitted via email 
to PW.Invoices@sheltonwa.gov.

Work Order #SCJ-24016 Page 1 of 3

mailto:PW.Invoices@sheltonwa.gov


Shelton Transportation Plan – Scope of Services
The purpose of this work scope is to prepare an independent Transportation Plan Update for the City based on 
the land use planning changes anticipated with the 2024/2025 Comprehensive Plan Update. This Transportation 
Plan will serve as the Transportation Element of the updated Comprehensive Plan.

The primary objective of the Plan will be to take a wholistic look at the City’s multimodal transportation system 
and capture the need for major projects to serve as a backbone transportation system that includes all travel 
modes. 

The Scope of Services is organized into seven phases as described below.

Phase 1: Data Collection and Analysis
• Conduct inventory of existing road and street system, including physical features, functional 

classification, geometrics and traffic control for key intersections and pavement condition.
o Pavement Condition Index (PCI) under separate work order, anticipated Summer 2024.
o ADA Transition Plan also under separate work order, anticipated August 2024.

• Collect most recent five year crash data, sort and identify key problems with severity and reflect on any 
changes that might be relevant in relation to the city’s recent Local Road Safety Plan.

• Conduct inventory of active transportation system including existing facilities, walksheds and 
operational performance/MMLOS.

• Identify benefits and best practices for development of an enhanced bicycle and pedestrian system,
• Document existing land use and demographic context for the plan.
• Document agency coordination and other modal services. Include transit, school district, county 

projects, Peninsula RTPO, WSDOT and private sector transportation providers.
• Based on expected land development patterns in the Comp Plan, identify locations for turning 

movement traffic counts and focused intersection analysis. Collection of traffic counts at 20 
intersections is assumed for purposes of budgeting.

• Conduct existing intersection operations analysis, review and document concurrency practice and LOS 
standards.

Phase 1 Fee Estimate: $21,500

Phase 2: Goal Setting/Coordination with Comprehensive Plan
• Review transportation plans and policies relevant to the Transportation Plan and update as appropriate.
• Prepare vision statement, goals and evaluation criteria to help define deficiencies/identify needs and 

prioritize improvements.
• It is assumed that most of this effort will be prepared under the Comprehensive Plan preparation tasks 

with review by the transportation team.

Phase 2 Fee Estimate: $800

Phase 3: Public Outreach and Engagement
• In conjunction with outreach and engagement efforts underway for the Comprehensive Plan, participate 

in the following activities:
o Advisory Committee meetings (assume 3 1.5-hour virtual meetings & coordination)
o Public meeting (in person)

• It is assumed that public outreach materials will be largely prepared by Comprehensive Plan team who 
will also attend Planning Commission and City Council meetings.

Phase 3 Fee Estimate: $4,200

Phase 4: Future Transportation Analysis
• Review and characterize land use updates/influence on forecasts
• Prepare 2045 forecasts - ADT and peak hour
• Conduct 2045 performance evaluation - v/c assessment, may require sensitivity to changes in sub-areas

Work Order #SCJ-24016 Page 2 of 3

BKilts
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Phase 4 Fee Estimate: $12,300

Phase 5: Summary of Needs, Deficiencies and Opportunities
• Identify roadway system gaps and improvement needs
• Update street classification
• Identify priority hot spots and opportunities
• Identify active transportation needs, gaps, and opportunities
• Develop toolbox for active transportation improvements

Phase 5 Fee Estimate: $7,200

Phase 6: Develop and Prioritize Recommendations
• Prepare draft list of recommended improvements, update and prioritize project list
• Prepare/update cost estimates to be utilized for 6-Year Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) and 

associated Transportation Impact Fees (TIF) calculations
o Consider factors like growth targets and triggers, repair & replacement, and level of service 

including pedestrian)
• Prepare maps and graphics to support plan findings and recommendations
• Review and prepare financial tables and forecasts by year for 6-Year TIP
• Prepare draft summary of funding opportunities

Phase 6 Fee Estimate: $28,500

Phase 7: Prepare Transportation Plan
• Prepare standalone transportation planning report
• Assist in preparing transportation section of Comprehensive Plan which could represents an executive 

summary of the larger transportation plan
• Adoption assistance

Phase 6 Fee Estimate: $14,500

Total Estimated Fee: $89,000

END OF SCOPE OF SERVICES

Work Order #SCJ-24016 Page 3 of 3



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G3) 

Touch Date:  05/07/2024  
Brief Date:    05/21/2024        
Action Date:  06/04/2024  

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris, Public Works Director 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
CivilAir Engineers Senior Engineer 
Contract Award 
   
ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution No. 1333-0524  
- Exhibit A, CivilAir Contract 

   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head     J.O.H 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The City Engineer departed in March of 2023, and the city has not been successful in filling this position. The 
City Engineer’s main role is to manage the private development review, permitting, and inspection group, 
together with managing the city internal water, sewer, storm drainage, and street capital improvement projects 
(CIP’s). 
 
In the past, Gray & Osborne had provided in-house City Engineer and Senior Engineer duties, but they also are 
not able to locate/hire Senior Civil Engineers and are not able to staff this position. In addition, the Gray & 
Osborne 2019 General Services Engineering contract ended on December 31, 2023. 
 
 In February 2024, the city posted an RFQ for Senior Engineering Services and received two statements of 
qualifications for the work. Staff rated the proposals and interviewed each engineering consultant firm and 
determined that CivilAir Engineers PLLC was the most qualified to perform the work for the City. 
 
Attached Exhibit A is the professional services agreement with CivilAir Engineers for Senior Engineering 
Services. CivilAir Engineers plans to have staff in the Civic Center two days per week, and available by phone 
or via MS Teams at other times during the work week. The total cost of the contract for the next year is 
proposed to not to exceed $200,000. 
 
The Public Works Engineering Department currently has a large backlog of city capital improvement projects, 
and the number of private development review applications is increasing exponentially. The 200-lot Olympic 
Heights subdivision is nearing land use approval and the onsite/offsite infrastructure improvement plans should 
be submitted to the city in the coming months.  
    
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The City could elect not to move forward with the senior engineering services contract with CivilAir Engineers, 
which will increase the timeframe for the review/permit issuance for private development land use submittals 
and decrease the number of capital improvement projects completed by the city each year. 
   



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Adequate funds exist in the FY 2024 Public Works Engineering fund for the proposed contract with CivilAir 
Engineers for senior engineering services. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
All past and current analysis are available for public review and input and can be obtained by contacting the 
Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to adopt Resolution No. 1333-0524 as written.” 



   

RESOLUTION NO. 1333-0524 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT WITH CIVILAIR, PLLC 

FOR SENIOR ENGINEER CONSULTING SERVICES 
 

 
WHEREAS, over the last year, the City has not been able to fill the vacant City Engineer position; and 
 
WHEREAS, the number of private development review and City capital improvement projects has 
steadily increased over the last few years that requires onsite employees that have significant 
engineering knowledge, project management skills, and abilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gray & Osborne had previously provided general engineering services for the city, and their 
contract expired on December 31st, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS; last February the city posted an RFQ for senior engineering services and received statements 
of qualifications from two engineering firms; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff reviewed the statements of qualifications, conducted in-person interviews with each 
firm, and determined that CivilAir Engineers, PLLC as the most qualified consultant to perform the 
needed work; and  
 
WHEREAS; a professional services agreement was prepared outlining the contract conditions between 
the City and CivilAir Engineers, and the draft contract is attached and incorporated as Exhibit A.  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, that the City 
Manager is authorized to execute the senior engineering services contract with CivilAir Engineers, PLLC 
and execute any subsequent contract amendments. 
 
INTRODUCED on the 21st of May 2024 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting on the 4th of 
June 2024. 
 
  
                                                                         __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault 



























Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G4) 

Touch Date: 06/04/2024 
Brief Date:       06/04/2024 
Action Date:  06/04/2024 

Department:  Executive 
 
Presented By:  Mark Ziegler 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Council Board and Committee 
Assignments 
 
 

  ATTACHMENTS:  
List of Boards and Committees 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Councilmembers serve on boards and committees to represent the City and the City’s interests. Participation 
may be required via organizational bylaws, law or as established by the Council itself. Annually the Council 
determines the Councilmember assignments. The assignments were updated on February 6, 2024, but with the 
resignation of Joe Schmit new assignments are necessary. 
 
Current openings are the Mason County Economic Development Council (EDC), Mason County EMS and 
Trauma Council and the Council Sub-Committee for Finance and Budget. 
 
Staff recommends the following appointments: 
 

EDC – City Staff 
Mason County EMS and Trauma Council – Open for discussion 
Sub-Committee for Finance/Budget - Mayor Onisko 
Mason County Housing and Behavioral Health Advisory Board – Councilmember Lyndsey Sapp 
 

ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The Council may agree that Councilmembers will serve on boards and committees in the interim of approval of 
the assignments if a majority decision is not reached.  
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
N/A 

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
The board and committee assignments will be identified on each Councilmember’s page on the City website. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff requests “I move to approve the amended 2024 Council board and committee assignments as presented”.   



Councilmembers Boards and Committees 2024
Councilmember Meeting Date Contact Time Alternate Rep.

Staff Economic Development Council (EDC) 2nd Thursday 

Karin Leaf             
choosemason.com                      
(360) 426-2276 7:45 a.m.

Eric Onisko Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) September City Clerk Varies

Sharon Schirman Mason County Criminal Justice Working Team 3rd Wednesday 

Keli Dunlap                                
kdunlap@co.mason.wa.us         
(360) 427-9670 x849 7:30 a.m.

Tom Gilmore MACECOM Legislative and Governing Board 3rd Thursday 3:00 p.m.

Melissa Stearns Law Enforcement Officers & Fire Fighters (LEOFF) Board 1st Tuesday 

Diane Zoren 
dlz@masoncountywa.gov           
(360) 427-9670 x747 8:00 a.m.

Miguel Gutierrez Mason County Board of Health Meeting 4th Tuesday-every other month 3:00 p.m.

Joe Schmit Mason County EMS & Trauma Council 3rd Thursday @ MGH
Joe Hoffman, MD 
office@masoncountyems.com 10:00am

Eric Onisko Mason Transit Authority Board - Regular Meeting 3rd Tuesday
clerk@masontransit.org                      
(360) 426-9434 4:00 p.m.

Eric Onisko Mason Transit Authority Board - Joint Meeting 2nd Tuesday - Quarterly
clerk@masontransit.org                      
(360) 426-9434 TBA

George Blush Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) 3rd Friday - Alternating months

Thera Black 
TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org                     
(360) 878-0353 10:00 a.m.

Melissa Stearns Opioid Stakeholders Meeting 2nd Wednesday 

Abe Gardner 
agardner@northmasonfa.com               
(360) 801-9555 9:00am

Lyndsey Sapp Mason County Housing & Behavioral Health Advisory Board 4th Wednesday

Todd Parker 
tparker@co.mason.wa.us              
(360) 427-9670 x293 9:00 a.m.

Miguel Gutierrez Shelton Memorial Park Board ? ? ?
ALL Shelton Metropolitan Park District Board (SMPD) Quarterly City Manager 5:45 p.m.

Schirman, Gutierrez, Blush Council Sub-Committee on Homeless Response Semi-monthly City Manager 9:00am

Gutierrez, Onisko, Schirman Council Sub-Committee Finance/Budget As-needed City Manager


	1 Agenda_20240604
	2 2024 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20240604
	4 DRAFT Minutes_20240416
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL

	5 DRAFT Minutes_20240423_Study Session
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL
	ADJOURN
	Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 7:24 p.m.

	6 Pride Month Proclamation
	7 Agenda Briefing MBR Headworks Upgrade
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	8 Resolution No 1135_0524 MBR Headworks Grant Acceptance
	9 State 2022 Headworks Grant Award Agreement
	Funding Award Letter_22-96515-050
	03_Contract_22-96515-050 MBR Headworks Expansion  Project
	FACE SHEET
	ADDITIONAL RECITALS
	SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	1. GRANT MANAGEMENT
	2. COMPENSATION
	3. CERTIFICATION OF FUNDS PERFORMANCE MEASURES
	4. PREVAILING WAGE LAW

	SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	5. DOCUMENTATION AND SECURITY
	6. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING REAL PROPERTY VALUES FOR ACQUISITIONS OF REAL PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURES
	7. EXPENDITURES ELIGIBLE FOR REIMBURSEMENT

	SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	8. BILLING PROCEDURES AND PAYMENT

	SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	9. SUBCONTRACTOR DATA COLLECTION
	10. CLOSEOUT CERTIFICATION
	11. INSURANCE

	SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	12. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE
	13. REDUCTION IN FUNDS
	14. OWNERSHIP OF PROJECT/CAPITAL FACILITIES

	SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	15. CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP OR USE FOR GRANTEE-OWNED PROPERTY
	16. CHANGE OF USE FOR LEASED PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURE
	17. SIGNAGE, MARKERS AND PUBLICATIONS
	18. HISTORICAL AND CULTURAL ARTIFACTS

	SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	19. REAPPROPRIATION
	20. TERMINATION FOR FRAUD OR MISREPRESENTATION
	21. APPLICABILITY OF COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS TO ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING DESIGN WORK
	22. FRAUD AND OTHER LOSS REPORTING

	SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	23. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	1. DEFINITIONS
	2. ACCESS TO DATA
	3. ADVANCE PAYMENTS PROHIBITED
	4. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN
	5. AMENDMENTS

	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	6. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) OF 1990, PUBLIC LAW 101-336, ALSO REFERRED TO AS THE “ADA” 28 CFR PART 35
	7. ASSIGNMENT
	8. ATTORNEYS’ FEES
	9. AUDIT

	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	10. BREACHES OF OTHER STATE CONTRACTS
	11. CONFIDENTIALITY/SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION
	12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	13. COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS
	14. DISPUTES

	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	15. DUPLICATE PAYMENT
	16. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE
	17. INDEMNIFICATION
	18. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE GRANTEE

	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	19. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE
	20. LAWS
	21. LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION
	22. LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY
	23. NONCOMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS
	24. PAY EQUITY

	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	25. POLITICAL ACTIVITIES
	26. PUBLICITY
	27. RECAPTURE
	28. RECORDS MAINTENANCE
	29. REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
	30. RIGHT OF INSPECTION

	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	31. SAVINGS
	32. SEVERABILITY
	33. SITE SECURITY
	34. SUBGRANTING/SUBCONTRACTING
	35. SURVIVAL
	36. TAXES
	37. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	38. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE
	39. TERMINATION PROCEDURES

	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	40. TREATMENT OF ASSETS
	41. WAIVER

	ATTACHMENT A - SCOPE OF WORK
	Attachment B - Certification of the Availability of Funds to Complete the Project
	ATTACHMENT C - CERTIFICATION OF THE PAYMENT AND REPORTING OF PREVAILING WAGES
	CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE

	ATTACHMENT D - CERTIFICATION OF INTENT TO ENTER THE LEADERSHIP IN ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN (LEED) CERTIFICATION PROCESS
	CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE



	10 Briefing_Res 1329-0424 6 Year TIP
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	11 Resolution No 1329-0424 6-Year TIP
	12 2024 TIP Public Hearing Notice
	NOTICE OF
	PUBLIC HEARING

	13 6 Year TIP 2025-2030 Rev
	Table 1

	14 TIP Definition of Information Codes
	00 – No Classification

	15 Briefing Transp. Comprehensive Plan Update
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	16 Res No 1332-0524 SCJ Alliance Transp. Comp. Plan Work
	17 Work Order No. SCJ-24016_Transp Comp Plan
	18 Briefing Contract with Civil Air PLLC for Senior Engineering Services
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	19 Res No 1333-0524 Civil Air PLLC for Senior Engineering Services
	20 Exhibit A, CivilAir Engineers Contract #24-003-PSA
	21 Council Board and Committee Assignments Briefing
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	22 Council Boards and Committees 2024
	2024 (2)


